
 
 
 

 
 

SEVENOAKS JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD 

14 November 2011 at 7.00 pm 
Conference Room - Council Office 

 

AGENDA 

 

Membership: 
District Council Members: 

Cllrs. Mrs. Davison, Edwards-Winser, (James) London, Searles, Towell, Underwood and 
Williamson. 

The County Councillors for the 7 County Electoral Divisions representing the Sevenoaks 
District: 

Cllrs. Brazier, Brookbank, Chard, Gough, Lake, (John) London and Parry. 

The representative from the Kent Association of Local Councils:  

Cllr. Robson 

 
 
Apologies for absence 
 
1. Minutes of the meeting of the Board held on 14 September 2011  (Pages 1 - 6) 

 

 
 

2. Declarations of interest   
 

 
 

3. Matters Arising/Update (Including Actions from Previous 
Meetings)  

 
 

 
 

4. Proposed parking restrictions in Chevening and Riverhead.  (Pages 7 - 46) 
 

Garry Connor 
 

5. Petition - Valley Road, Fawkham.  (Pages 47 - 54) 
 

Laura Squires 
 

6. Sevenoaks Pedestrian Guardrailing Assessment.  (Pages 55 - 82) 
 

Julian Cook 
 

7. Highway Improvement Scheme Progress Report.  (Pages 83 - 92) 
 

Julian Cook 
 

8. Kent County Council Highways and Transportation 
Restructure.  

(Pages 93 - 120) 
 

Julian Cook 
 

EXEMPT ITEMS 



 
 

(At the time of preparing this agenda there were no exempt items.  During any such items 
which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public.) 

 
 
 
Please note the following reports may be of interest for information and can be found on the 
Sevenoaks District Council website: 
 
1. 

Highways Works Programme 2011/12. Julian Cook 

0845 8247 800 

2. 
Sevenoaks Winter Service Plan – 2011/12. Julian Cook 

0845 8247 800 

 

To assist in the speedy and efficient despatch of business, Members wishing to obtain factual 
information on items included on the Agenda are asked to enquire of the appropriate Director or Contact 

Officer named on a report prior to the day of the meeting. 
 

Should you require a copy of this agenda or any of the reports listed on it in another format please do 
not hesitate to contact the Democratic Services Team as set out below. 

 
For any other queries concerning this agenda or the meeting please contact: 

 
The Democratic Services Team (01732 227241) 

 



1 

SEVENOAKS JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board 
 held on 14 September 2011 commencing at 7.00 pm 

 
 

Present: Cllr. J London (Chairman) 
 
Mr D Brazier (Vice-Chairman) 
 

 Cllr Mrs J Davison, Sevenoaks District Council 
Cllr. J Edwards-Winser, Sevenoaks District Council 
Cllr. P Towell, Sevenoaks District Council 
Mr R Brookbank, Kent County Council 
Mr N Chard, Kent County Council 
Mr R Gough, Kent County Council 
Mr P Lake, Kent County Council 
Mr J London, Kent County Council 
Mr R Parry, Kent County Council 
 

 Apologies for absence: Cllr. T Searles, Cllr. J Underwood and 
Cllr A Robson 
 

 
 

8. MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE BOARD HELD ON 15 JUNE 2011  
 
Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting of the Sevenoaks Joint 
Transportation Board held on 15 June 2011 be approved and signed by the 
Chairman as a correct record subject to the following amendments: 
 
(i) Minute 2 - Declarations of Interest, being amended to reflect that it is 

Cllr. Gough’s wife who is the governor of the school; 
 
(ii) Minute 3 - Matters Arising/Updates, the deletion of the second 

sentence of the first paragraph; and 
 
(iii) Minute 7 – Proposed Traffic Regulation Order 2009, the insertion of a 

comma after the word ‘suggestions’ and the addition of the words 
‘which would be funded by County Member Parry’s County Highways 
Fund.’ 

 
9. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
Cllr. Brazier declared a personal interest in minute item 4 as it was in his 
division and that he was called on occasion to advise the Cabinet Member for 
Environment, Highways and Waste in his capacity as his Deputy. 
 
Cllr Edwards-Winser declared a personal interest in minute item 5 as a 
member of the affected Ward. 
 

Agenda Item 1

Page 1



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - Wednesday, 14 September 2011 
 
 

2 

10. MATTERS ARISING/UPDATE (INCLUDING ACTIONS FROM PREVIOUS 
MEETINGS)  
 
Cllr. Chard advised that he had not yet had the opportunity to speak with Ms. 
Squires regarding the petition for a pedestrian footway in Windmill Road, but 
that he thought it had been agreed that he would make a contribution from his 
Highway Allocations Budget.  However he had also understood that initially 
there needed to be an agreement with the landowner, followed by a draft 
scheme and assessment of costs, before funding was looked at.  Officers 
advised that talks with landowners could often take a couple of years to reach 
a conclusion and would speak to the County Member about funding. 
 

Action: Kent Highway Services (KHS) to investigate whether the 
proposal could be funded by the County Member’s Highway Allocations 
Budget. 

 
11. PRESENTATION OF PETITION REGARDING ROAD SAFETY AROUND 

FAWKHAM CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL  
 
Cllr. Mrs. Parkin thanked the Chairman for placing the presentation of the 
petition on the agenda and expressed her support for it.   
 
A representative of the parents and children of the school spoke on behalf of 
the petitioners.  He informed the Board that there was a great deal of concern 
regarding road safety around the school which was located on a busy country 
road which pedestrians had to cross to gain access to the school.  The school 
itself was in a 40mph zone only 350 yards from the 30mph zone within 
Fawkham Green itself.  There had been several accidents in the area and 
outside the school itself.  Campaigning for more road safety improvement 
features had been ongoing. The petitioners were aware that road traffic 
surveys had been carried out following an agreement in spring 2011 to look at 
reducing the speed to 30mph but no conclusions had been shared and 
nothing further had been heard.  
 
He advised that another school in the area had stopped parking within the 
school playground, had a new crossing, road markings and a school crossing 
patroller.  In comparison their children were crossing an unmarked road with 
sweeping bends and a small straight where traffic often increased their speed.  
The road also narrowed leaving drivers concentrating more on their passing 
space rather than their environment.  Just beyond the school entrance/exit 
there was an overgrown hedgerow obstructing sightlines, causing exiting 
traffic to pull out onto the wrong side of the junction to gain a better view, 
causing further problems.  The school’s lighting was frequently out of order or 
on the wrong timings and was often covered by tree growth.  Existing road 
markings and signage had faded.  Parking inside the school was limited which 
meant many parents parked on the road, adding to the congestion problems.  
Many parents lived in Fawkham and walked their children to school with 
younger children and buggies which made it harder to cross the road. 
 
In conclusion he requested that the speed limit be reduced to 20mph, at least 
during school-run hours, a pedestrian crossing be built, traffic calming be 
installed, that the existing signage be maintained and lighting left in good 

Agenda Item 1

Page 2



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - Wednesday, 14 September 2011 
 
 

3 

working order, that there be more significant road signage with no-stopping 
signs and zigzag road markings, and that the car parking issue be addressed.  
The petition was presented to the Chairman. 
 
Members advised that issues such as parking within the school premises and 
the funding for a school crossing patroller fell outside the scope of the Board 
and were issues for the school to address itself. 
 

Action: KHS to inspect the area and carry out any remedial works 
necessary to existing signage, road markings, lighting and hedgerows, 
and also fully investigate and report back to the next meeting on the 
issues raised. 

 
12. PROPOSED PARKING RESTRICTIONS IN OTFORD PART 2  

 
The Senior Parking and Traffic Engineer (SDC) presented the report which 
requested Members to approve a traffic regulation order to introduce new 
parking restrictions in the Bubblestone Road, The Old Walk and The Butts 
areas of Otford.  He advised Members that requests for such measures had 
been received from local residents during the consultation exercise on the 
new parking restrictions implemented to control commuter parking in the 
Tudor Drive and Well Road areas.  He brought Members’ attention to the 
objections received and officers’ responses as detailed within the report. 
Some Members of the Board agreed that traffic had already been displaced to 
these sites since the introduction of the earlier measures. 
A Member expressed his support for the scheme as a whole but queried 
whether a 10m all day no waiting restriction was enough on junction corners 
as he understood it should be 15m.  In response he was advised that the 
minimum requirement was 10m and that best practice was 15m and 
Members’ attention was drawn to the comments received from Kent Police 
(Appendix C to the report).  Members discussed the possible need to extend 
the length of the corner protection in certain areas, but concurred that as the 
emergency services were happy with the 10m restriction it would be better to 
review the situation once implemented. 
Following a query as to where displacement parking would now occur, the 
Officer advised that it would lessen and spread over a wider area , hopefully 
encouraging more use of the station car park.  Displacement parking may 
occur around The Pond, station and possibly Leonard Road, and current 
restrictions in these areas may need to be reviewed as a result.  He confirmed 
that a review of the new restrictions, if agreed, would be carried out within a 6-
12 month time period. 
 

Resolved: That the comments and objections to the changes in the 
on-street parking Traffic Regulation Order 2009 Amendment 22 be 
noted, and the officer  recommendations set out within the report 
be approved for implementation. 

 
The size of Appendix C to the report was commented on and a suggestion 
made that further appendices of this length would be better kept electronically 
accessible rather than printed on paper.  County Members expressed concern 
on ease of access to the documents, but it was agreed in principle that for 

Agenda Item 1

Page 3



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - Wednesday, 14 September 2011 
 
 

4 

future reports large appendices should be made available on the website 
rather than printed in full. 
 

13. SEVENOAKS CYCLE STRATEGY  
 
The Kent Highway Schemes Manager introduced the report which sought 
Members approval to carry out a public consultation exercise on the draft 
Cycling Strategy.  He reminded Members that it was an objective of Kent’s 
Third Local Transport Plan (LTP3) for all districts to have a cycling strategy 
place by 2012. He advised that Sevenoaks had little existing cycling 
infrastructure and that most was for leisure rather than commuting purposes.  
County Cllr. Brazier applauded the enthusiasm, knowledge and ingenuity of 
the Sevenoaks Cycling Forum which had helped get the Strategy to this 
stage.  The Working Group, made up of County Cllrs., District Cllrs. and the 
Forum had resulted in a spirited and thoughtful attempt to devise a strategy in 
a challenging environment.  He felt that on offer were the safest alternative 
routes available and he was excited to see what the public made of it.  Cllr. 
Chard thought it was exciting, pragmatic and practical, with a forewarning of 
the amount of work to be done after the consultation exercise. 
 
Members welcomed the strategy making some general comments which 
included:  
• to note that Shoreham is a Parish not Town Council 
• keen not to create conflict with pedestrians 
• Halfords to be added to the list of cycle shops to be consulted. 
• the Parish Clerk at Shoreham was disappointed their comments were 
not included and were concerned with regards to footpath SL32 being turned 
into a cycle path 
• further clarification was needed, such as a map reference, to the areas 
identified within the questionnaire  
 
Mr. J. Morrison from Sevenoaks Cycling Forum addressed the Board 
speaking in support of the strategy.  He was happy with the progress that had 
been made since the formation of the Working Group.  He advised that on the 
inspection visits, routes had been carefully and thoughtfully assessed and any 
that were too narrow did not go into the plan.  He was excited that the district 
would be benefitting from having been chosen as the  Paralympic Road 
Cycling venue and hoped to capitalise on that with regards to the promotion of 
cycling.  He thanked all Councillors and Officers involved with special thanks 
to Ms. R. Thomas (KHS).  Looking to the future there were areas still not 
covered, but he believed that most of the proposed schemes would be 
achievable with minimal cost.  There was no uniform definition of a cyclist as 
they ranged in skill, age and purpose so it was difficult to find a solution that 
suited everyone.  He was eager to engage the District Council further, 
particularly on matters of provision by development control within large 
planning developments, and the Community Development Team in wider 
scale issues such as health and obesity. 
 
Resolved: That the plan to carry out a full public consultation exercise on 
the Draft Sevenoaks Cycle Strategy and intended method of distribution, be 
approved. 
 

Agenda Item 1

Page 4



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - Wednesday, 14 September 2011 
 
 

5 

14. INFORMATION ITEMS  
 
Information items listed on the agenda and made available on the Committee 
Management Information System were noted (CMIS). A further information 
item on ‘Winter Damage Repairs – Find & Fix and Surfacing Schemes’ was 
also received and noted. 
 
In answer to a question from a member of the public, the KHS District 
Manager (Sevenoaks) replied that he hoped to bring a further report on 
pedestrian guard railings to the next meeting of the Board. 
 
The KHS District Manager (Sevenoaks) advised that the new KHS staffing 
structure had just been made available. It was agreed that this should be 
circulated and considered at the next meeting. 
 

Action: The new KHS staffing structure be circulated to all Members 
and considered at the next meeting of the Board. 

 
 

THE MEETING WAS CONCLUDED AT  7.58 pm 
 

  
 
 
 

Chairman 

Agenda Item 1

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



  

SEVENOAKS JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD – 14 DECEMBER 2011 

PROPOSED PARKING RESTRICTIONS IN CHEVENING AND RIVERHEAD 

Report of the: Community and Planning Services Director 

Status: For decision 

Executive Summary:  This report requests that Members approve the introduction of 
a traffic regulation order to introduce new and amend existing parking restrictions in 
the Witches Lane, Westerham Road, Cranmer Road and St Marys Drive areas of 
Chevening and Riverhead parishes. 

This report supports the Key Aim of safer communities and the effective and 
efficient use of resources. 

Portfolio Holder Cllr. Hunter 

Head of Service Head of Environmental and Operational Services – Mr. Richard 
Wilson 

Recommendation:  It be RESOLVED that the comments and objections to the 
changes in the on-street parking Traffic Regulation Order 2009 Amendment 16 be 
noted and the officer recommendations set out within this report be approved for 
implementation. 

History 

1. In respect to Cranmer Road and St Marys Drive, the District Council had 
received comments that parking near the entrance to these roads was causing 
congestion and hindering vehicles turning in and out.  Hence, the proposal to 
introduce a double yellow line restriction at the junction of Cranmer Road and 
to extend the existing double yellow line restriction in St Marys Drive at the 
junction with the A25 Worships Hill. 

2. In respect to Witches Lane, the District Council had been requested by Kent 
Highways to include proposals for double yellow line restrictions opposite the 
Amherst County Primary School and adjacent the traffic calming feature in 
order to prevent congestion and to maintain traffic flow. 

3. In respect to the existing double yellow line restriction on all the approaches to 
the traffic light junction on the A25 outside the Riverhead Primary School, the 
Traffic Regulation Order needs to be amended to agree with current road 
markings and signing.  The change is to simply remove the reference to “no 
loading or unloading” in the Order as this is neither necessary nor required.  

Agenda Item 4

Page 7



 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011  

This proposal affects Worships Hill, Westerham Road, Witches Lane and Cold 
Arbour Road in the vicinity of the traffic light junction. 

4. The District Council undertook formal public consultation for all the proposals 
in March 2011.  It is acknowledged that the results of the consultation should 
have been brought to this Board at an earlier date, but issues relating to 
workloads and restructuring of Kent Highways delayed the matter. 

5. Plans detailing the proposals and the draft Traffic Regulation Order are shown 
in Appendices A and B respectively. 

Consultation Responses 

6. The District Council carried out formal consultation on the proposals in 
accordance with the statutory requirements, with the consultation running from 
10 February to 13 March 2011.  The proposals for St Marys Drive had been 
amended as noted below following informal consultation undertaken in 2010.  
A plan detailing the earlier proposal is attached as Appendix D. 

7. In respect to the proposals the responses are summarised as follows; copies 
of comments received are included in Appendix C: 

Cranmer Road (new double yellow line restriction 
at junction) 

Responses 2  

In favour of proposal 1 50% 

Against proposal 0  

No opinion 1 50% 

 One comment received from a resident of Cranmer Road related to concern 
that the parking restrictions proposed for Witches Lane would compound 
problems in Cranmer Road.  This was not recorded as being in favour or 
against any of the proposals and is included in the table for Cranmer Road. 

St Marys Drive (extension to existing double 
yellow  

Responses 8  

In favour of proposal 3 37.5% 

Against proposal 5 62.5% 

No opinion 0  

Agenda Item 4

Page 8



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011 

Item No. 4  

 Objections were received from five residents of Riverhead House broadly 
concerned about the loss of parking spaces and giving the view that the 
existing restrictions were adequate.  However, the prior, informal consultation 
responses asked that the restrictions be extended to cover the access road to 
Riverhead Mews and Riverhead House due to parking that occurs there. 

 

Witches Lane (double yellow lines opposite the 
school) 

Responses 5  

In favour of proposal 3 60% 

Against proposal 2 40% 

No opinion 0  

 A response from the Headmaster of the Amherst County Primary School 
confirmed he was in favour of the proposals.  Chevening Parish Council 
wished it to be recorded that they were against the proposals.  A Sevenoaks 
District Councillor for Dunton Green and Riverhead disagreed with the 
proposal. 

 

Change to the existing restrictions at the traffic 
light junction 

No responses were received in relation to this 
proposal. 

 

8. In general, Kent Police confirmed it had no specific comment to make and the 
Riverhead Parish Council stated that it was pleased with the proposals but 
made no specific comments. 

Recommendations 

9. In view of the highway implications within the proposals, the consultation 
responses have been discussed with officers at Kent Highways.  It is the view 
of Kent Highways that in the interests of preventing obstruction of the highway 
and to assist the flow of traffic, all objections should be set aside in respect to 
all the proposals and that the proposals be approved for implementation. 

10. It is, therefore, recommended that Members consider the objections, but also 
the expressions of support for the proposals received and accordingly set 
aside the objections and approve the introduction of the restrictions as 
proposed. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 9



 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011  

Key Implications 

Financial 

11. If approved, the work required to implement the proposals will be discussed 
with Kent Highways to determine how best to proceed.  The cost to install 
additional yellow lining is estimated at £800 and will be met from the 
respective Councils highways lining budgets once the action has been agreed. 

Community impact and outcomes 

12. The proposals should reduce obstruction to the highway and assist in the flow 
of traffic, although there will be a reduction in the number of parking spaces 
available at certain locations. 

Legal, Human Rights, etc 

13. The procedures appropriate to the promotion, advertisement and introduction 
of a traffic regulation order (as set out in the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders 
(Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996) have been followed and 
exceeded. 

Risk Assessment Statement 

14. The proposals should have no increased level of risk beyond those relating to 
the  management of on-street parking. 

Sources of Information: The Kent County Council (Various Roads in the 
District of Sevenoaks) (Prohibition and Restriction 
of Waiting and Loading and Unloading and On-
Street Parking Places) (Amendment 16) Order 
2009. 

Informal consultation undertaken in 2010 in 
relation to parking proposals in Riverhead and 
Chevening parishes. 

Existing on-street parking traffic regulation orders 
held by the Parking and Amenity team. 

Contact Officer(s): Andy Bracey Ext.7323 

KRISTEN PATERSON 
COMMUNITY AND PLANNING SERVICES DIRECTOR  

 

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 10



S
T
 M

A
R
Y
'S

D
R
IV

E

R
a
g
s
to

n
e
s

B
a
rn

s
id

e

2

4

5

20

27

15

1

5
,6

R
iv
er

h
ea

d
 M

ew
s

A
25

 W
O
R
S
H
IP

S
 H

IL
L

R
iv

e
rh

e
a
d

H
o
u
s
e

T
h
e

C
o
tt

a
g
eB

a
n
k

2

9a

9

7
23

21

1
2

3

l

M
a
n
o
r

L
e
a
t

W
o
rs

h
ip

s

L
o
d
g
e

R
ep

ro
d

u
ce

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e 
O

rd
n

a
n

ce
 S

u
rv

ey
 m

a
p

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

p
er

m
is

si
o

n
 o

f

th
e 

co
n

tr
o

ll
er

 o
f 

H
er

 M
a

je
st

y
's

 S
ta

ti
o

n
er

y
 O

ff
ic

e,
 C

ro
w

n
 C

o
p

y
ri

g
h

t
2

0
0

0
.

U
n

a
u

th
o

ri
se

d
 r

ep
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
 i

n
fr

in
g

es
 C

ro
w

n
 C

o
p

y
ri

g
h

t 
a

n
d

 m
a

y

le
a

d
 t

o
 p

ro
se

cu
ti

o
n

 o
r 

ci
v

il
 p

ro
ce

ed
in

g
s.

D
a

te
R

ev
is

io
n

R
ef

D
ra

w
n

T
it

le

S
ev

en
o

a
k

s
D

 I
 S

 T
 R

 I
 C

 T
   

 C
 O

 U
 N

 C
 I

 L

S
ca

le
 1

:1
0

0
0

F
il

e 
re

f 
: 

T
/R

iv
er

h
ea

d

D
a

te
 :

 1
4

/0
9

/1
0

D
ra

w
n

 b
y

 :
 A

C
B

F
il

e 
n

a
m

e 
: 

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

 -
 S

t 
M

a
ry

s 
D

ri
v

e 
- 

14
0

9
10

.p
d

f

K
ey

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 W
a

it
in

g
 R

es
tr

ic
ti

o
n

s 
- 

C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
S

t 
M

a
ry

's
 D

ri
v

e
R

iv
er

h
ea

d

E
x

is
ti

n
g

 d
o

u
b

le
 y

el
lo

w
 l

in
es

If
 y

o
u

 f
in

d
 t

h
e 

p
la

n
s 

o
r 

co
lo

u
rs

 c
o

n
fu

si
n

g
, 

p
le

a
se

 t
ry

 v
ie

w
in

g
 t

h
e 

p
la

n
s 

o
n

 t
h

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
eb

si
te

w
w

w
.s

ev
en

o
a

k
s.

g
o

v
.u

k

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 d
o

u
b

le
 y

el
lo

w
 l

in
es

9
/1

0
D

Y
L

 e
x

te
n

d
ed

 t
o

 M
ew

s
A

A
C

B

Agenda Item 4

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



W
O
RS

H
IP

S 
H
IL

L

P
a
v
il
io

n

C
R
A
N
M
ER

 R
O
A
D

S
w

im
m

in
g

P
o
o
l

A
m

h
e
rs

t 
C
o
u
n
ty

P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

WIT
CHES LA

NE

P
a
v
il
io

n

12

15

4a

4

1

16

22a

22b

24

24a

26

38

4

1
4

5

WITCHES LANE

A
m

h
e
rs

t 
C
o
u
n
ty

P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l

S
h
o
n
ri
e

W
O
R
S
H
IP

S
 H

IL
L

T
h
e
 O

ld
 R

e
c
to

ry

O
ld

 M
e
e
ti
n
g
 H

o
u
s
e

COLD
 ARBOR ROAD

R
iv

e
rh

e
a
d

In
fa

n
t 

S
c
h
o
o
l

W
E
S
T
E
R
H
A
M

 R
O
A
D

R
ep

ro
d

u
ce

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e 
O

rd
n

a
n

ce
 S

u
rv

ey
 m

a
p

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

p
er

m
is

si
o

n
 o

f

th
e 

co
n

tr
o

ll
er

 o
f 

H
er

 M
a

je
st

y
's

 S
ta

ti
o

n
er

y
 O

ff
ic

e,
 C

ro
w

n
 C

o
p

y
ri

g
h

t
2

0
0

0
.

U
n

a
u

th
o

ri
se

d
 r

ep
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
 i

n
fr

in
g

es
 C

ro
w

n
 C

o
p

y
ri

g
h

t 
a

n
d

 m
a

y

le
a

d
 t

o
 p

ro
se

cu
ti

o
n

 o
r 

ci
v

il
 p

ro
ce

ed
in

g
s.

D
a

te
R

ev
is

io
n

R
ef

D
ra

w
n

T
it

le

S
ev

en
o

a
k

s
D

 I
 S

 T
 R

 I
 C

 T
   

 C
 O

 U
 N

 C
 I

 L

S
ca

le
 1

:1
0

0
0

F
il

e 
re

f 
: 

T
/R

iv
er

h
ea

d

D
a

te
 :

 2
9

/0
7

/1
0

D
ra

w
n

 b
y

 :
 A

C
B

F
il

e 
n

a
m

e 
: 

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

 -
 W

o
rs

h
ip

s 
H

il
l 

- 
2

9
0

7
10

.p
d

f

K
ey

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 W
a

it
in

g
 R

es
tr

ic
ti

o
n

s 
- 

C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
A

2
5

 W
o

rs
h

ip
s 

H
il

l 
/ 

C
o

ld
 A

rb
o

r 
R

o
a

d
 /

 W
it

ch
es

 L
a

n
e

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

 &
 C

h
ev

en
in

g

E
x

is
ti

n
g

 i
n

co
rr

ec
t 

'N
o

 w
a

it
in

g

If
 y

o
u

 f
in

d
 t

h
e 

p
la

n
s 

o
r 

co
lo

u
rs

 c
o

n
fu

si
n

g
, 

p
le

a
se

 t
ry

 v
ie

w
in

g
 t

h
e 

p
la

n
s 

o
n

 t
h

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
eb

si
te

w
w

w
.s

ev
en

o
a

k
s.

g
o

v
.u

k

a
n

d
 n

o
 l

o
a

d
in

g
 a

t 
a

n
y

 t
im

e'
, 

to

b
ec

o
m

e 
'N

o
 w

a
it

in
g

 a
t 

a
n

y

ti
m

e'

E
x

is
ti

n
g

 S
ch

o
o

l 
K

ee
p

 C
le

a
r

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 'N
o

 w
a

it
in

g
 a

t 
a

n
y

ti
m

e'
E

x
is

ti
n

g
 't

ra
ff

ic

ca
lm

in
g

' n
a

rr
o

w
in

g

Agenda Item 4

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



The Kent County Council (Various Roads in the District of Sevenoaks) (Prohibition and Restriction of Waiting and 
Loading and Unloading and On-Street Parking Places)
 (Amendment 16) (Riverhead & Chevening) Order 2009

Page 1 of 11

THE KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

(VARIOUS ROADS IN THE DISTRICT OF SEVENOAKS)

(PROHIBITION AND RESTRICTION OF WAITING AND 

LOADING & UNLOADING AND ON -STREET PARKING 

PLACES)

(AMENDMENT 16) (RIVERHEAD & CHEVENING) ORDER 2009

THE KENT COUNTY COUNCIL, (hereinafter ref

the local traffic authority and in exercise of its powers under Sections 1, 2, 32, 35, 36, 

45, 46, 47, 49, 53, 124 and Part IV of Schedule 9 to the Road Traffic Regulation Act 

1984 (hereinafter re

Contraventions (England) General Regulations 2007 (hereinafter referred to as 

and of all other enabling powers and after consultation 

with the Chief Officer of Police in accordance with Part III of Schedule 9 to the Act of 

1984, hereby makes the following Order.

The attached Appendices 5 (Chevening) and 23 (Riverhead) are to be substituted in to 

The Kent County Council (Various Roads in the District of Sevenoaks) (Prohibition 

and Restriction of Waiting and Loading and Unloading and On-Street Parking Places)

(Consolidation) Order 2009 in to all subsequent amendment Orders:

Citation

The Interpretation Act 1978 shall apply for the interpretation of this Order as it 

applies for the interpretation of an Act of Parliament.

This Order may be cited as;

and Restriction of Waiting and Loading & Unloading and On-Street Parking Places) 

(Amendment 16) (Riverhead & Chevening) Order 2009

and shall come into operation on the ?? ???????? 2011.

Given under the Seal of the Kent County Council

This  ??
th

 day of ???????? 2011

THE COMMON SEAL OF THE

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL was

hereunto affixed in the

presence of:-

Authorised Signatory

Agenda Item 4

Page 15



The Kent County Council (Various Roads in the District of Sevenoaks) (Prohibition and Restriction of Waiting and 
Loading and Unloading and On-Street Parking Places)
 (Amendment 16) (Riverhead & Chevening) Order 2009

Page 2 of 11

Agenda Item 4

Page 16



T
h

e
 K

e
n

t 
C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

(V
a

ri
o

u
s
 R

o
a

d
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

o
f 

S
e
v
e

n
o

a
k
s
) 

(P
ro

h
ib

it
io

n
 a

n
d

 R
e

s
tr

ic
ti
o

n
 o

f 
W

a
it
in

g
 a

n
d

 L
o

a
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 U

n
lo

a
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 O

n
-S

tr
e

e
t 

P
a

rk
in

g
 P

la
c
e

s
)

 (
A

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
t 

1
6

) 
(R

iv
e

rh
e

a
d

 &
 C

h
e

v
e

n
in

g
) 

O
rd

e
r 

2
0

0
9

P
a
g
e
 3

 o
f 

1
1

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 
C

H
E

V
E

N
IN

G

A
p

p
en

d
ix

P
a

ri
sh

S
ch

ed
u

le
R

o
a
d

S
id

e
D

ef
in

it
io

n
T

y
p

e 
o

f 

re
st

ri
ct

io
n

T
im

e
D

a
y

M
a
x
 p

er
io

d
 

w
h

ic
h

 v
eh

ic
le

s 

m
a

y
 w

a
it

S
ca

le
 o

f 

ch
a
rg

es

A
re

a
T

y
p

es
 o

f 

v
eh

ic
le

U
n

iq
u

e 
R

ef

S
D

C
 2

0
0

9
-1

6

5
C

h
ev

en
in

g
1

B
ar

n
fi

el
d
 R

o
ad

 
N

o
rt

h
ea

st
F

ro
m

 i
ts

 j
u

n
ct

io
n

 w
it

h
 W

it
ch

es
 L

an
e,

 

so
u

th
-e

as
tw

ar
d
s 

fo
r 

1
5
m

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 

d
ay

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p
 5

-0
0
0
1

5
C

h
ev

en
in

g
1

B
es

se
ls

 W
ay

 
B

o
th

F
ro

m
 t

h
e 

so
u

th
er

n
 k

er
b
li

n
e 

o
f 

W
es

te
rh

am
 R

d
 (

A
2
5
),

 s
o
u
th

w
ar

d
s,

 

fo
ll

o
w

in
g
 t

h
e 

ed
g
e 

o
f 

ca
rr

ia
g
ew

ay
, 
fo

r 

2
0
m

.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 

d
ay

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 5
-0

0
0
2

5
C

h
ev

en
in

g
1

B
es

se
ls

 W
ay

 
E

as
t

F
ro

m
 a

 p
o

in
t 

le
v
el

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

b
o

u
n

d
ar

y
 o

f 

1
1
/1

2
 B

es
se

ls
 W

ay
 i

n
 a

 s
o
u
th

 t
h
en

 

ea
st

er
ly

 d
ir

ec
ti

o
n
 f

o
r 

2
8
m

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 

d
ay

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 5
-0

0
0
3

5
C

h
ev

en
in

g
1

B
es

se
ls

 W
ay

 
W

es
t

F
ro

m
 a

 p
o

in
t 

le
v
el

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

b
o

u
n

d
ar

y
 o

f 

1
1
/1

2
 B

es
se

ls
 W

ay
 i

n
 a

 s
o
u
th

 t
h
en

 

w
es

te
rl

y
 d

ir
ec

ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

2
2
m

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 

d
ay

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 5
-0

0
0
4

5
C

h
ev

en
in

g
1

B
es

se
ls

 W
ay

 

(S
o
u
th

er
n
 a

rm
)

N
o
rt

h
F

ro
m

 a
 p

o
in

t 
1

m
 w

es
t 

o
f 

th
e 

b
o

u
n

d
ar

y
 o

f 

2
2
/2

3
 i

n
 a

 w
es

te
rl

y
 d

ir
ec

ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

2
6
m

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 

d
ay

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 5
-0

0
0
5

5
C

h
ev

en
in

g
1

B
u
ll

fi
n
ch

 C
lo

se
B

o
th

F
ro

m
 i

ts
 j

u
n

ct
io

n
 w

it
h
 C

h
ip

st
ea

d
 L

an
e,

 

n
o
rt

h
-w

es
tw

ar
d
s 

fo
r 

1
5
m

.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 

d
ay

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 5
-0

0
0
6

5
C

h
ev

en
in

g
1

B
u
ll

fi
n
ch

 L
an

e
N

o
rt

h
w

es
t

F
ro

m
 i

ts
 j

u
n

ct
io

n
 w

it
h

 C
h

ip
st

ea
d

 L
an

e,
 

n
o
rt

h
-e

as
tw

ar
d
s 

fo
r 

1
5
m

.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 

d
ay

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 5
-0

0
0
7

5
C

h
ev

en
in

g
1

C
h

ip
st

ea
d

 L
an

e 
N

o
rt

h
F

ro
m

 a
 p

o
in

t 
1

5
m

 w
es

t 
o

f 
it

s 
ju

n
ct

io
n

 

w
it

h
 B

u
ll

fi
n
ch

 C
lo

se
, 
ea

st
w

ar
d
s 

to
 i

ts
 

ju
n
ct

io
n
 w

it
h
 B

u
ll

fi
n
ch

 L
an

e.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 

d
ay

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 5
-0

0
0
8

5
C

h
ev

en
in

g
1

C
h

ip
st

ea
d

 L
an

e 
S

o
u

th
F

ro
m

 i
ts

 j
u
n
ct

io
n
 w

it
h
 W

it
ch

es
 L

an
e,

 

w
es

tw
ar

d
s 

fo
r 

4
0
m

.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 

d
ay

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 5
-0

0
0
9

5
C

h
ev

en
in

g
1

C
h

ip
st

ea
d

 L
an

e 
S

o
u

th
F

ro
m

 i
ts

 j
u

n
ct

io
n

 w
it

h
 W

it
ch

es
 L

an
e,

 

ea
st

w
ar

d
s 

fo
r 

3
0
m

.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 

d
ay

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 5
-0

0
1
0

5
C

h
ev

en
in

g
1

C
h

ip
st

ea
d

 L
an

e 
S

o
u

th
ea

st
F

ro
m

 a
 p

o
in

t 
in

 l
in

e 
w

it
h

 t
h

e 
so

u
th

-

ea
st

er
n
 b

o
u
n
d
ar

y
 o

f 
N

o
. 
4
1
 C

h
ip

st
ea

d
 

L
an

e,
 s

o
u
th

-e
as

tw
ar

d
s 

fo
r 

4
5
m

.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 

d
ay

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 5
-0

0
1
1

5
C

h
ev

en
in

g
1

C
o

ld
 A

rb
o

r 
R

o
ad

B
o
th

F
ro

m
 i

ts
 j

u
n

ct
io

n
 w

it
h
 W

es
te

rh
am

 R
o
ad

 

(A
2
5
),

 s
o
u
th

w
es

tw
ar

d
s 

fo
r 

2
8
m

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 

d
ay

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 5
-0

0
1
2

5
C

h
ev

en
in

g
1

H
ig

h
 S

tr
ee

t
S

o
u

th
ea

st
F

ro
m

 a
 p

o
in

t 
in

 l
in

e 
w

it
h

 t
h

e 

so
u

th
ea

st
er

n
 b

o
u

n
d

ar
y
 o

f 
4

1
 C

h
ip

st
ea

d
 

L
an

e,
 s

o
u
th

ea
st

w
ar

d
s 

to
 t

h
e 

n
o
rt

h
er

n
 

b
o
u
n
d
ar

y
 o

f 
6
3
 C

h
ip

st
ea

d
 L

an
e

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 

d
ay

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 5
-0

0
1
3

5
C

h
ev

en
in

g
1

L
ar

k
fi

el
d
 R

o
ad

 
N

o
rt

h
F

ro
m

 a
 p

o
in

t 
le

v
el

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

b
o

u
n

d
ar

y
 o

f 

1
0
/1

2
 L

ar
k
fi

el
d
 R

o
ad

, 
in

 a
 w

es
te

rl
y
 t

h
en

 

n
o
rt

h
er

ly
 d

ir
ec

ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

2
1
m

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 

d
ay

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 5
-0

0
1
4

5
C

h
ev

en
in

g
1

M
ar

ti
n

's
 S

h
aw

B
o
th

F
ro

m
 i

ts
 j

u
n

ct
io

n
 w

it
h

 H
ig

h
 S

tr
ee

t,
 

so
u

th
ea

st
w

ar
d

s 
fo

r 
1

0
m

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 

d
ay

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 5
-0

0
1
5

5
C

h
ev

en
in

g
1

W
es

te
rh

am
 R

o
ad

 

(A
2
5
)

B
o
th

F
ro

m
 i

ts
 j

u
n

ct
io

n
 w

it
h

 W
o

rs
h

ip
s 

H
il

l 

(A
2
5
),

 s
o
u
th

w
es

tw
ar

d
s,

 f
o
ll

o
w

in
g
 t

h
e 

k
er

b
li

n
es

 t
o
 a

 p
o
in

t 
7
.5

m
 e

as
t 

o
f 

th
e 

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 

d
ay

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 5
-0

0
1
6

Agenda Item 4

Page 17



T
h

e
 K

e
n

t 
C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

(V
a

ri
o

u
s
 R

o
a

d
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

o
f 

S
e
v
e

n
o

a
k
s
) 

(P
ro

h
ib

it
io

n
 a

n
d

 R
e

s
tr

ic
ti
o

n
 o

f 
W

a
it
in

g
 a

n
d

 L
o

a
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 U

n
lo

a
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 O

n
-S

tr
e

e
t 

P
a

rk
in

g
 P

la
c
e

s
)

 (
A

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
t 

1
6

) 
(R

iv
e

rh
e

a
d

 &
 C

h
e

v
e

n
in

g
) 

O
rd

e
r 

2
0

0
9

P
a
g
e
 4

 o
f 

1
1

A
p

p
en

d
ix

P
a

ri
sh

S
ch

ed
u

le
R

o
a
d

S
id

e
D

ef
in

it
io

n
T

y
p

e 
o

f 

re
st

ri
ct

io
n

T
im

e
D

a
y

M
a
x
 p

er
io

d
 

w
h

ic
h

 v
eh

ic
le

s 

m
a

y
 w

a
it

S
ca

le
 o

f 

ch
a
rg

es

A
re

a
T

y
p

es
 o

f 

v
eh

ic
le

U
n

iq
u

e 
R

ef

S
D

C
 2

0
0

9
-1

6

b
o
u
n
d
ar

y
 o

f 
6
 &

 8
 W

es
te

rh
am

 R
o
ad

.

5
C

h
ev

en
in

g
1

W
es

te
rh

am
 R

o
ad

 

(A
2
5
)

S
o

u
th

F
ro

m
 a

 p
o

in
t 

1
8

m
 e

as
t 

o
f 

th
e 

ea
st

er
n

 

k
er

b
li

n
e 

o
f 

B
es

se
ls

 W
ay

, 
w

es
tw

ar
d
s 

to
 a

 

p
o
in

t 
1
7
m

 w
es

t 
o
f 

th
e 

w
es

te
rn

 k
er

b
li

n
e 

o
f 

B
es

se
ls

 W
ay

.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 

d
ay

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 5
-0

0
1
7

5
C

h
ev

en
in

g
1

W
it

ch
es

 L
an

e
B

o
th

F
ro

m
 i

ts
 j

u
n

ct
io

n
 w

it
h

 C
h

ip
st

ea
d

 L
an

e,
 

so
u

th
w

ar
d

s 
fo

r 
1

5
m

.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 

d
ay

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 5
-0

0
1
8

5
C

h
ev

en
in

g
1

W
it

ch
es

 L
an

e
E

as
t

F
ro

m
 i

ts
 j

u
n

ct
io

n
 w

it
h

 B
ar

n
fi

el
d

 R
o

ad
, 

n
o
rt

h
w

ar
d
s 

fo
r 

2
5
m

.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 

d
ay

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 5
-0

0
1
9

5
C

h
ev

en
in

g
1

W
it

ch
es

 L
an

e
W

es
t

F
ro

m
 i

ts
 j

u
n

ct
io

n
 w

it
h

 W
o

rs
h

ip
s 

H
il

l 

(A
2
5
),

 n
o
rt

h
w

ar
d
s 

to
 a

 p
o
in

t 
4
m

 n
o
rt

h
 o

f 

th
e 

b
o
u
n
d
ar

y
 o

f 
2
4
a 

&
 2

6
 W

it
ch

es
 L

an
e.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 

d
ay

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 5
-0

0
2
0

5
C

h
ev

en
in

g
1

W
o
rs

h
ip

s 
H

il
l 

(A
2
5
)

B
o
th

F
ro

m
 i

ts
 j

u
n

ct
io

n
 w

it
h

 W
es

te
rh

am
 R

o
ad

 

(A
2
5
),

 n
o
rt

h
ea

st
w

ar
d
s 

to
 t

h
e 

p
ar

is
h

b
o
u
n
d
ar

y
 w

it
h
 R

iv
er

h
ea

d
 P

ar
is

h

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 

d
ay

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 5
-0

0
2
1

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

3
R

IV
E

R
H

E
A

D

A
p

p
en

d
ix

P
a

ri
sh

S
ch

ed
u

le
R

o
a
d

S
id

e
D

ef
in

it
io

n
T

y
p

e 
o

f 

re
st

ri
ct

io
n

T
im

e
D

a
y

M
a
x
 p

er
io

d
 

w
h

ic
h

 v
eh

ic
le

s 

m
a

y
 w

a
it

S
ca

le
 o

f 

ch
a
rg

es

A
re

a
T

y
p

es
 o

f 

v
eh

ic
le

U
n

iq
u

e 
R

ef

S
D

C
 2

0
0

9
-1

6

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
A

is
h
er

 W
ay

N
o
rt

h
F

ro
m

 i
ts

 j
u

n
ct

io
n

 w
it

h
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 R

d
 i

n
 a

 

w
es

te
rl

y
 d

ir
ec

ti
o
n
 t

o
 a

 p
o
in

t 
5
1
m

 e
as

t 
o
f 

th
e 

ea
st

er
n
 k

er
b

li
n
e 

o
f 

 T
h
e 

F
lo

at
s

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
A

ll
 d

ay
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
0
1

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
A

is
h
er

 W
ay

S
o

u
th

F
ro

m
 i

ts
 j

u
n

ct
io

n
 w

it
h

 L
o
n

d
o

n
 R

d
 i

n
 a

 

w
es

te
rl

y
 d

ir
ec

ti
o
n
 t

o
 a

 p
o
in

t 
5
1
m

 e
as

t 
o
f 

th
e 

ea
st

er
n
 k

er
b

li
n
e 

o
f 

T
h
e 

F
lo

at
s,

 

ex
cl

u
d
in

g
 t

h
e 

b
u
s 

st
o
p

 a
re

a

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
A

ll
 d

ay
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
0
2

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
A

m
h
er

st
 H

il
l 

(A
2
2
4
)

E
as

t
F

ro
m

 t
h

e 
so

u
th

er
n

 k
er

b
li

n
e 

o
f 

S
h

o
re

h
am

 

L
an

e,
 s

o
u
th

w
ar

d
s 

to
 t

h
e 

b
o
u
n
d
ar

y
 o

f 
th

e 

P
ar

is
h

 o
f 

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

to
w

n
 o

f 

S
ev

en
o

ak
s.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
0
3

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
A

m
h
er

st
 H

il
l 

(A
2
2
4
)

N
o
rt

h
ea

st
F

ro
m

 t
h

e 
so

u
th

er
n

 k
er

b
li

n
e 

o
f 

W
o
rs

h
ip

s 

H
il

l 
(A

2
5
),

 s
o
u
th

ea
st

w
ar

d
s 

to
 t

h
e 

so
u

th
er

n
 b

o
u

n
d

ar
y
 o

f 
T

o
w

n
se

n
d

 

C
h

am
b

er
s

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
0
4

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
A

m
h
er

st
 H

il
l 

(A
2
2
4
)

N
o
rt

h
ea

st
F

ro
m

 a
 p

o
in

t 
6

m
 n

o
rt

h
w

es
t 

o
f 

th
e 

n
o
rt

h
er

n
 k

er
b

li
n
e 

o
f 

B
ar

ro
w

 W
ay

, 

so
u

th
w

ar
d

s 
to

 a
 p

o
in

t 
7

m
 s

o
u

th
ea

st
 o

f 

th
e 

so
u
th

er
n
 k

er
b

li
n
e 

o
f 

B
ar

ro
w

 W
ay

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
0
5

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
A

m
h
er

st
 H

il
l 

(A
2
2
4
)

N
o
rt

h
ea

st
F

ro
m

 a
 p

o
in

t 
4

7
m

 s
o

u
th

ea
st

 o
f 

th
e 

so
u

th
er

n
 k

er
b

li
n

e 
o

f 
B

ar
ro

w
 W

ay
, 

so
u

th
ea

st
w

ar
d
s 

to
 t

h
e 

n
o
rt

h
er

n
 k

er
b

li
n
e 

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
0
6

Agenda Item 4

Page 18



T
h

e
 K

e
n

t 
C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

(V
a

ri
o

u
s
 R

o
a

d
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

o
f 

S
e
v
e

n
o

a
k
s
) 

(P
ro

h
ib

it
io

n
 a

n
d

 R
e

s
tr

ic
ti
o

n
 o

f 
W

a
it
in

g
 a

n
d

 L
o

a
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 U

n
lo

a
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 O

n
-S

tr
e

e
t 

P
a

rk
in

g
 P

la
c
e

s
)

 (
A

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
t 

1
6

) 
(R

iv
e

rh
e

a
d

 &
 C

h
e

v
e

n
in

g
) 

O
rd

e
r 

2
0

0
9

P
a
g
e
 5

 o
f 

1
1

A
p

p
en

d
ix

P
a

ri
sh

S
ch

ed
u

le
R

o
a
d

S
id

e
D

ef
in

it
io

n
T

y
p

e 
o

f 

re
st

ri
ct

io
n

T
im

e
D

a
y

M
a
x
 p

er
io

d
 

w
h

ic
h

 v
eh

ic
le

s 

m
a

y
 w

a
it

S
ca

le
 o

f 

ch
a
rg

es

A
re

a
T

y
p

es
 o

f 

v
eh

ic
le

U
n

iq
u

e 
R

ef

S
D

C
 2

0
0

9
-1

6

o
f 

S
h
o
re

h
am

 L
an

e

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
A

m
h
er

st
 H

il
l 

(A
2
2
4
)

N
o
rt

h
ea

st
F

ro
m

 a
 p

o
in

t 
in

 l
in

e 
w

it
h

 t
h

e 
b

o
u

n
d

ar
y
 

o
f 

W
h
it

e 
C

o
tt

ag
e 

an
d
 T

o
w

n
se

n
d
 

C
h

am
b

er
s,

 n
o

rt
h
-w

es
tw

ar
d
s 

fo
r 

6
0
m

.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3
-0

0
0
7

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

3
A

m
h
er

st
 H

il
l 

(A
2
2
4
)

N
o
rt

h
ea

st
F

ro
m

 a
 p

o
in

t 
2

m
 s

o
u

th
ea

st
 o

f 
th

e 

n
o
rt

h
er

n
 f

la
n
k
 w

al
l 

o
f 

M
o
d
er

n
 F

o
rg

e,
 

so
u

th
ea

st
w

ar
d

s 
to

 a
 p

o
in

t 
6

m
 n

o
rt

h
w

es
t 

o
f 

th
e 

n
o
rt

h
er

n
 k

er
b

li
n
e 

o
f 

B
ar

ro
w

 W
ay

L
im

it
ed

 

w
ai

ti
n
g

8
.3

0
am

-

6
.3

0
p
m

M
o

n
d

ay
 t

o
 

S
at

u
rd

ay

2
h
o
u
rs

 (
n
o
 

re
tu

rn
 w

it
h
in

 1
 

h
o
u
r)

 e
x
ce

p
t 

p
er

m
it

 h
o
ld

er
s

B
4
, 
B

5
, 

B
6
, 
C

1

R
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
0
8

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

3
A

m
h
er

st
 H

il
l 

(A
2
2
4
)

N
o
rt

h
ea

st
F

ro
m

 a
 p

o
in

t 
7

m
 s

o
u

th
ea

st
 o

f 
th

e 

so
u

th
er

n
 k

er
b

li
n

e 
o

f 
B

ar
ro

w
 W

ay
, 

so
u

th
ea

st
w

ar
d
s 

fo
r 

4
0
m

L
im

it
ed

 

w
ai

ti
n
g

8
.3

0
am

-

6
.3

0
p
m

M
o

n
d

ay
 t

o
 

S
at

u
rd

ay

2
h
o
u
rs

 (
n
o
 

re
tu

rn
 w

it
h
in

 1
 

h
o
u
r)

 e
x
ce

p
t 

p
er

m
it

 h
o
ld

er
s

B
4
, 
B

5
, 

B
6
, 
C

1

R
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
0
9

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

4
A

m
h
er

st
 H

il
l 

(A
2
2
4
)

N
o
rt

h
ea

st
F

ro
m

 t
h

e 
so

u
th

er
n

 b
o

u
n

d
ar

y
 o

f 

T
o

w
n

se
n

d
 C

h
am

b
er

s,
 s

o
u

th
ea

st
w

ar
d
s 

to
 

a 
p

o
in

t 
2
m

 s
o
u
th

ea
st

 o
f 

th
e 

n
o
rt

h
er

n
 

fl
an

k
 w

al
l 

o
f 

M
o
d
er

n
 F

o
rg

e

B
u
s 

st
o
p
 

cl
ea

rw
ay

7
am

-7
p
m

E
v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
1
0

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
A

m
h
er

st
 H

il
l 

(A
2
2
4
)

S
o

u
th

w
es

t
F

ro
m

 a
 p

o
in

t 
2

0
m

 n
o

rt
h
-w

es
t 

o
f 

it
s 

ju
n
ct

io
n
 w

it
h
 S

h
o
re

h
am

 L
an

e,
 n

o
rt

h
-

w
es

tw
ar

d
s 

to
 a

 p
o
in

t 
1
5
m

 s
o
u
th

-e
as

t 
o
f 

it
s 

ju
n
ct

io
n
 w

it
h
 M

o
n
tr

ea
l 

R
o
ad

.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
1
1

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
A

m
h
er

st
 H

il
l 

(A
2
2
4
)

S
o

u
th

w
es

t
F

ro
m

 a
 p

o
in

t 
1

0
m

 n
o

rt
h
-w

es
t 

o
f 

it
s 

ju
n
ct

io
n
 w

it
h
 M

o
n
tr

ea
l 

R
o
ad

, 
n
o
rt

h
-

w
es

tw
ar

d
s 

to
 i

ts
 j

u
n
ct

io
n
 w

it
h
 W

o
rs

h
ip

s 

H
il

l 
(A

2
5
).

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
1
2

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
A

m
h
er

st
 H

il
l 

(A
2
2
4
)

W
es

t
F

ro
m

 a
 p

o
in

t 
1

5
m

 s
o

u
th

 o
f 

a 
p

o
in

t 

o
p
p
o
si

te
 t

h
e 

ju
n
ct

io
n
 o

f 
S

h
o
re

h
am

 L
an

e 

in
 a

 n
o
rt

h
er

ly
 d

ir
ec

ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

5
0
m

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3
-0

0
1
3

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
A

m
h
er

st
 H

il
l 

(A
2
2
4
)

W
es

t
F

ro
m

 i
ts

 j
u

n
ct

io
n

 w
it

h
 M

o
n

tr
ea

l 
R

o
ad

, 

in
 a

 s
o
u
th

er
ly

 d
ir

ec
ti

o
n
 f

o
r 

1
0
m

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
1
4

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
A

m
h
er

st
 H

il
l 

(A
2
2
4
)

W
es

t
F

ro
m

 i
ts

 j
u

n
ct

io
n

 w
it

h
 M

o
n

tr
ea

l 
R

o
ad

, 

in
 a

 n
o
rt

h
er

ly
 d

ir
ec

ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

1
0
m

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
1
5

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
B

ar
n
fi

el
d
 R

o
ad

 
S

o
u

th
ea

st
F

ro
m

 i
ts

 j
u

n
ct

io
n

 w
it

h
 W

it
ch

es
 L

an
e,

 

n
o
rt

h
-e

as
tw

ar
d
s 

fo
r 

1
5
m

.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
1
6

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
B

la
ck

m
ea

d
B

o
th

F
ro

m
 i

ts
 j

u
n

ct
io

n
 w

it
h

 A
is

h
er

 W
ay

 i
n

 a
 

n
o
rt

h
er

ly
 d

ir
ec

ti
o
n
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e 

o
u
ts

id
e 

k
er

b
li

n
e 

o
f 

th
e 

ro
u
n
d
ab

o
u
t,

 f
o
ll

o
w

in
g
 

th
e 

k
er

b
li

n
e 

fo
r 

1
7
.5

m

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
A

ll
 d

ay
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
1
7

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
B

ri
tt

ai
n
s 

L
an

e 
B

o
th

F
ro

m
 i

ts
 j

u
n

ct
io

n
 w

it
h

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 R
o

ad
 

(A
2
2
4
) 

so
u
th

w
ar

d
s 

to
 a

 p
o
in

t 
2
5
m

 s
o
u
th

 

o
f 

it
s 

ju
n
ct

io
n
 w

it
h
 i

ts
 s

o
u
th

er
n
m

o
st

 

ju
n
ct

io
n
 w

it
h
 L

y
n
d
h
u
rs

t 
D

ri
v
e.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
A

ll
 d

ay
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
1
8

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
B

u
ll

fi
n
ch

 L
an

e
N

o
rt

h
ea

st
F

ro
m

 i
ts

 j
u

n
ct

io
n
 w

it
h

 C
h

ip
st

ea
d

 L
an

e,
 

n
o
rt

h
-w

es
tw

ar
d
s 

an
d
 n

o
rt

h
-e

as
tw

ar
d
s 

fo
r 

1
5
m

.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3
-0

0
1
9

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
B

u
ll

fi
n
ch

 L
an

e
N

o
rt

h
w

es
t

F
ro

m
 i

ts
 j

u
n

ct
io

n
 w

it
h

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 R
d
 i

n
 a

 

so
u

th
 w

es
te

rl
y
 d

ir
ec

ti
o

n
 t

o
 i

ts
 j

u
n

ct
io

n
 

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
A

ll
 d

ay
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
2
0

Agenda Item 4

Page 19



T
h

e
 K

e
n

t 
C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

(V
a

ri
o

u
s
 R

o
a

d
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

o
f 

S
e
v
e

n
o

a
k
s
) 

(P
ro

h
ib

it
io

n
 a

n
d

 R
e

s
tr

ic
ti
o

n
 o

f 
W

a
it
in

g
 a

n
d

 L
o

a
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 U

n
lo

a
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 O

n
-S

tr
e

e
t 

P
a

rk
in

g
 P

la
c
e

s
)

 (
A

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
t 

1
6

) 
(R

iv
e

rh
e

a
d

 &
 C

h
e

v
e

n
in

g
) 

O
rd

e
r 

2
0

0
9

P
a
g
e
 6

 o
f 

1
1

A
p

p
en

d
ix

P
a

ri
sh

S
ch

ed
u

le
R

o
a
d

S
id

e
D

ef
in

it
io

n
T

y
p

e 
o

f 

re
st

ri
ct

io
n

T
im

e
D

a
y

M
a
x
 p

er
io

d
 

w
h

ic
h

 v
eh

ic
le

s 

m
a

y
 w

a
it

S
ca

le
 o

f 

ch
a
rg

es

A
re

a
T

y
p

es
 o

f 

v
eh

ic
le

U
n

iq
u

e 
R

ef

S
D

C
 2

0
0

9
-1

6

w
it

h
 B

ad
en

 P
o
w

el
l 

R
d

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
B

u
ll

fi
n
ch

 L
an

e
S

o
u

th
ea

st
F

ro
m

 i
ts

 j
u

n
ct

io
n
 w

it
h

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 R
d

 i
n

 a
 

so
u

th
 w

es
te

rl
y
 d

ir
ec

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e 

n
o

rt
h

er
n

 

k
er

b
li

n
e 

o
f 

th
e 

la
y
 b

y
 o

u
ts

id
e 

o
f 

7
4
 

B
u
ll

fi
n
ch

 L
an

e

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
A

ll
 d

ay
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
2
1

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
C

h
ip

st
ea

d
 L

an
e 

N
o
rt

h
w

es
t

F
ro

m
 i

ts
 j

u
n

ct
io

n
 w

it
h

 B
u

ll
fi

n
ch

 L
an

e,
 

n
o
rt

h
-e

as
tw

ar
d
s 

fo
r 

1
5
m

.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
2
2

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
C

ra
n

m
er

 R
o

ad
B

o
th

F
ro

m
 t

h
e 

n
o

rt
h

w
es

te
rn

 k
er

b
li

n
e 

o
f 

W
o
rs

h
ip

s 
H

il
l 

(A
2
5
),

 n
o
rt

h
w

es
tw

ar
d
s,

 

fo
ll

o
w

in
g
 t

h
e 

k
er

b
li

n
es

 f
o
r 

1
6
m

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
A

ll
 d

ay
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
2
3

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

d
E

as
t

F
ro

m
 a

 p
o

in
t 

1
4

m
 n

o
rt

h
 o

f 
th

e 
n
o
rt

h
er

n
 

fl
an

k
 w

al
l 

o
f 

3
8
 B

la
ck

m
ea

d
 i

n
 a

 

so
u

th
er

ly
 d

ir
ec

ti
o

n
 t

o
 a

 p
o

in
t 

4
2

m
 n

o
rt

h
 

o
f 

it
s 

ju
n
ct

io
n
 w

it
h
 S

co
tt

s 
W

ay

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
A

ll
 d

ay
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
2
4

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

d
W

es
t

F
ro

m
 a

 p
o

in
t 

1
4

m
 n

o
rt

h
 o

f 
th

e 
n

o
rt

h
er

n
 

fl
an

k
 w

al
l 

o
f 

3
8
 B

la
ck

m
ea

d
 i

n
 a

 

so
u

th
er

ly
 d

ir
ec

ti
o

n
 t

o
 a

 p
o

in
t 

1
0

m
 s

o
u

th
 

o
f 

it
s 

ju
n
ct

io
n
 w

it
h
 B

u
ll

fi
n
ch

 L
an

e

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
A

ll
 d

ay
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
2
5

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

3
L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
ad

 
N

o
rt

h
ea

st
F

ro
m

 a
 p

o
in

t 
5

m
 s

o
u
th

-e
as

t 
o
f 

it
s 

ju
n
ct

io
n
 w

it
h
 T

h
e 

P
at

ch
, 
so

u
th

-

ea
st

w
ar

d
s 

to
 a

 p
o
in

t 
1
5
m

 n
o
rt

h
-w

es
t 

o
f 

it
s 

ju
n
ct

io
n
 w

it
h
 S

co
tt

s 
W

ay
.

L
im

it
ed

 

w
ai

ti
n
g

8
.3

0
am

-

6
.3

0
p
m

M
o

n
d

ay
 t

o
 

S
at

u
rd

ay

2
h
o
u
rs

 (
n
o
 

re
tu

rn
 w

it
h
in

 1
 

h
o
u
r)

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
2
6

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

3
L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
ad

 
N

o
rt

h
ea

st
F

ro
m

 a
 p

o
in

t 
1

5
m

 s
o
u

th
-e

as
t 

o
f 

it
s 

ju
n
ct

io
n
 w

it
h
 S

co
tt

s 
W

ay
, 
so

u
th

-

ea
st

w
ar

d
s 

to
 a

 p
o
in

t 
5
m

 n
o
rt

h
-w

es
t 

o
f 

it
s 

ju
n
ct

io
n
 w

it
h
 L

in
d
en

 S
q
u
ar

e.

L
im

it
ed

 

w
ai

ti
n
g

8
.3

0
am

-

6
.3

0
p
m

M
o

n
d

ay
 t

o
 

S
at

u
rd

ay

2
h
o
u
rs

 (
n
o
 

re
tu

rn
 w

it
h
in

 1
 

h
o
u
r)

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
2
7

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

3
L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
ad

 
N

o
rt

h
ea

st
F

ro
m

 a
 p

o
in

t 
5
m

 s
o
u
th

-e
as

t 
o
f 

it
s 

ju
n
ct

io
n
 w

it
h
 L

in
d
en

 S
q
u
ar

e,
 s

o
u
th

-

ea
st

w
ar

d
s 

to
 a

 p
o
in

t 
9
8
m

 s
o
u
th

-e
as

t 
o
f 

it
s 

ju
n
ct

io
n
 w

it
h
 L

in
d
en

 S
q
u
ar

e.

L
im

it
ed

 

w
ai

ti
n
g

8
.3

0
am

-

6
.3

0
p
m

M
o

n
d

ay
 t

o
 

S
at

u
rd

ay

2
h
o
u
rs

 (
n
o
 

re
tu

rn
 w

it
h
in

 1
 

h
o
u
r)

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
2
8

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
ad

 

(A
2
2
4
)

B
o
th

F
ro

m
 a

 p
o

in
t 

in
 l

in
e 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

b
o

u
n

d
ar

y
 

b
et

w
ee

n
 t

h
e 

p
ar

is
h
 o

f 
R

iv
er

h
ea

d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e 

to
w

n
 o

f 
S

ev
en

o
ak

s,
 n

o
rt

h
w

es
tw

ar
d
s 

to
 a

 

p
o
in

t 
9
0
m

 n
o
rt

h
w

es
t 

o
f 

it
s 

ju
n
ct

io
n
 w

it
h
 

B
ri

tt
ai

n
s 

L
an

e.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
A

ll
 d

ay
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0

2
9

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
ad

 

(A
2
2
4
)

B
o
th

F
ro

m
 6

m
 n

o
rt

h
 o

f 
it

s 
ju

n
ct

io
n

 o
f 

H
am

li
n

 

R
o

ad
, 

n
o

rt
h

w
ar

d
s 

to
 t

h
e 

so
u

th
 e

n
d

 o
f 

th
e 

p
ar

ap
et

 o
f 

L
o
n
g
fo

rd
 M

il
l 

B
ri

d
g
e,

 

(e
x
cl

u
d
in

g
 t

h
e 

la
y
-b

y
 o

n
 t

h
e 

ea
st

 s
id

e 
o
f 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
ad

 s
it

u
at

ed
 b

et
w

ee
n
 a

 p
o
in

t 

8
2
m

 a
n
d
 a

 p
o
in

t 
1
1
2
m

 n
o
rt

h
 o

f 
it

s 

ju
n
ct

io
n
 w

it
h
 H

am
li

n
 R

o
ad

).

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

7
.3

0
am

-

6
.3

0
p
m

M
o

n
d

ay
 t

o
 

S
at

u
rd

ay

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
3
0

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
ad

 

(A
2
2
4
)

E
as

t
B

et
w

ee
n
 i

ts
 j

u
n
ct

io
n
s 

w
it

h
 A

m
h
er

st
 H

il
l 

(A
2
2
4
) 

an
d
 M

ai
d
st

o
n
e 

R
o
ad

 (
A

2
5
).

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
A

ll
 d

ay
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
3
1

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
ad

 

(A
2
2
4
)

E
as

t
F

ro
m

 a
 p

o
in

t 
5

m
 s

o
u

th
 o

f 
it

s 
ju

n
ct

io
n

 

w
it

h
 T

h
e 

P
at

ch
, 
n
o
rt

h
w

ar
d
s 

to
 i

ts
 

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
A

ll
 d

ay
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
3
2

Agenda Item 4

Page 20



T
h

e
 K

e
n

t 
C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

(V
a

ri
o

u
s
 R

o
a

d
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

o
f 

S
e
v
e

n
o

a
k
s
) 

(P
ro

h
ib

it
io

n
 a

n
d

 R
e

s
tr

ic
ti
o

n
 o

f 
W

a
it
in

g
 a

n
d

 L
o

a
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 U

n
lo

a
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 O

n
-S

tr
e

e
t 

P
a

rk
in

g
 P

la
c
e

s
)

 (
A

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
t 

1
6

) 
(R

iv
e

rh
e

a
d

 &
 C

h
e

v
e

n
in

g
) 

O
rd

e
r 

2
0

0
9

P
a
g
e
 7

 o
f 

1
1

A
p

p
en

d
ix

P
a

ri
sh

S
ch

ed
u

le
R

o
a
d

S
id

e
D

ef
in

it
io

n
T

y
p

e 
o

f 

re
st

ri
ct

io
n

T
im

e
D

a
y

M
a
x
 p

er
io

d
 

w
h

ic
h

 v
eh

ic
le

s 

m
a

y
 w

a
it

S
ca

le
 o

f 

ch
a
rg

es

A
re

a
T

y
p

es
 o

f 

v
eh

ic
le

U
n

iq
u

e 
R

ef

S
D

C
 2

0
0

9
-1

6

ju
n
ct

io
n
 w

it
h
 H

am
li

n
 R

o
ad

.

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
ad

 

(A
2
2
4
)

N
o
rt

h
ea

st
F

ro
m

 a
 p

o
in

t 
9

0
m

 n
o

rt
h
-w

es
t 

o
f 

th
e 

b
o
u
n
d
ar

y
 b

et
w

ee
n
 t

h
e 

P
ar

is
h
 o

f 

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

to
w

n
 o

f 
S

ev
en

o
ak

s,
 

n
o
rt

h
-w

es
tw

ar
d
s 

to
 a

 p
o
in

t 
1
0
m

 s
o
u
th

-

ea
st

 o
f 

it
s 

ju
n
ct

io
n
 w

it
h
 S

h
o
re

h
am

 L
an

e.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
3
3

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
ad

 

(A
2
2
4
)

N
o
rt

h
ea

st
F

ro
m

 a
 p

o
in

t 
1

5
m

 s
o

u
th

-e
as

t 
o
f 

it
s 

ju
n
ct

io
n
 w

it
h
 S

co
tt

s 
W

ay
, 
n
o
rt

h
-

w
es

tw
ar

d
s 

fo
r 

3
0
m

.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
A

ll
 d

ay
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
3
4

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
ad

 

(A
2
2
4
)

N
o
rt

h
ea

st
F

ro
m

 a
 p

o
in

t 
5

m
 s

o
u

th
-e

as
t 

o
f 

it
s 

ju
n
ct

io
n
 w

it
h
 L

in
d
en

 S
q
u
ar

e,
 n

o
rt

h
-

w
es

tw
ar

d
s 

fo
r 

1
0
m

.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
A

ll
 d

ay
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
3
5

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
ad

 

(A
2
2
4
)

S
o

u
th

w
es

t
F

ro
m

 a
 p

o
in

t 
9

0
m

 n
o

rt
h
-w

es
t 

o
f 

th
e 

b
o
u
n
d
ar

y
 b

et
w

ee
n
 t

h
e 

P
ar

is
h
 o

f 

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

to
w

n
 o

f 
S

ev
en

o
ak

s,
 

n
o
rt

h
-w

es
tw

ar
d
s 

to
 a

 p
o
in

t 
1
5
m

 s
o
u
th

-

ea
st

 o
f 

it
s 

ju
n
ct

io
n
 w

it
h
 S

h
o
re

h
am

 L
an

e.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
3
6

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
ad

 

(A
2
2
4
)

W
es

t
F

ro
m

 i
ts

 j
u

n
ct

io
n

 w
it

h
 A

m
h

er
st

 H
il

l 

(A
2
2
4
),

 n
o
rt

h
w

ar
d
s 

to
 a

 p
o
in

t 
7
0
m

 s
o
u
th

 

o
f 

it
s 

ju
n
ct

io
n
 w

it
h
 O

rc
h
ar

d
 R

o
ad

 

ex
cl

u
d
in

g
 t

h
e 

la
y
-b

y
.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
A

ll
 d

ay
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
3
7

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
ad

 

(A
2
2
4
)

W
es

t
F

ro
m

 a
 p

o
in

t 
6

1
m

 s
o

u
th

 o
f 

it
s 

ju
n

ct
io

n
 

w
it

h
 O

rc
h
ar

d
 R

o
ad

, 
n
o
rt

h
w

ar
d
s 

to
 a

 

p
o
in

t 
1
0
m

 s
o
u
th

 o
f 

it
s 

ju
n
ct

io
n
 w

it
h
 

B
u
ll

fi
n
ch

 L
an

e.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

8
.3

0
am

-

6
.3

0
p
m

M
o

n
d

ay
 t

o
 

S
at

u
rd

ay

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
3
8

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
ad

 

(A
2
2
4
)

W
es

t
F

ro
m

 a
 p

o
in

t 
7

0
m

 s
o

u
th

 o
f 

it
s 

ju
n

ct
io

n
 

w
it

h
 O

rc
h
ar

d
 R

o
ad

, 
n
o
rt

h
w

ar
d
s 

to
 i

ts
 

ju
n
ct

io
n
 w

it
h
 B

u
ll

fi
n
ch

 L
an

e,
 a

 d
is

ta
n
ce

 

o
f 

ap
p

ro
x
im

at
el

y
 1

4
0
m

.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

8
.3

0
am

-

6
.3

0
p
m

M
o

n
d

ay
 t

o
 

S
at

u
rd

ay

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
3
9

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

3
L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
ad

 

(A
2
2
4
)

W
es

t
W

it
h
in

 t
h
e 

la
y
-b

y
 t

h
at

 i
s 

si
tu

at
ed

 

b
et

w
ee

n
 t

h
e 

ju
n
ct

io
n
s 

o
f 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
ad

 

w
it

h
 A

m
h
er

st
 H

il
l 

(A
2
2
4
) 

an
d
 

M
ai

d
st

o
n

e 
R

o
ad

 (
A

2
5

).

L
im

it
ed

 

w
ai

ti
n
g

8
.3

0
am

-

6
.3

0
p
m

M
o

n
d

ay
 t

o
 

S
at

u
rd

ay

2
0
m

in
s 

(n
o
 

re
tu

rn
 w

it
h
in

 

4
0
m

in
s)

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
4
0

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

3
L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
ad

 

(A
2
2
4
)

W
es

t
W

it
h
in

 t
h
e 

la
y
-b

y
 s

it
u
at

ed
 o

n
 t

h
is

 s
id

e.
L

im
it

ed
 

w
ai

ti
n
g

8
.3

0
am

-

6
.3

0
p
m

M
o

n
d

ay
 t

o
 

S
at

u
rd

ay

2
0
m

in
s 

(n
o

re
tu

rn
 w

it
h
in

 

4
0
m

in
s)

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
4
1

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
L

y
n
d
h
u
rs

t 
D

ri
v
e 

N
o
rt

h
F

ro
m

 t
h

e 
w

es
te

rn
 k

er
b

 l
in

e 
o

f 
B

ri
tt

ai
n

s 

L
an

e,
 w

es
tw

ar
d
s 

to
 t

h
e 

so
u
th

ea
st

er
n
 

k
er

b
li

n
e 

o
f 

L
y
n
d
h
u
rs

t 
D

ri
v
e 

(n
o
rt

h
er

n
 

se
ct

io
n

)

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
4
2

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
L

y
n
d
h
u
rs

t 
D

ri
v
e 

N
o
rt

h
F

ro
m

 t
h

e 
n

o
rt

h
w

es
te

rn
 k

er
b

li
n

e 
o

f 

L
y
n
d
h
u
rs

t 
D

ri
v
e 

(n
o
rt

h
er

n
 s

ec
ti

o
n
),

 

w
es

tw
ar

d
s 

to
 t

h
e 

ea
st

er
n
 k

er
b
li

n
e 

o
f 

M
ar

lb
o

ro
u

g
h

 C
re

sc
en

t 
(n

o
rt

h
er

n
 

ju
n
ct

io
n
)

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
4
3

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
L

y
n
d
h
u
rs

t 
D

ri
v
e 

N
o
rt

h
F

ro
m

 t
h

e 
w

es
te

rn
 k

er
b

li
n

e 
o

f 
N

o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
4
4

Agenda Item 4

Page 21



T
h

e
 K

e
n

t 
C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

(V
a

ri
o

u
s
 R

o
a

d
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

o
f 

S
e
v
e

n
o

a
k
s
) 

(P
ro

h
ib

it
io

n
 a

n
d

 R
e

s
tr

ic
ti
o

n
 o

f 
W

a
it
in

g
 a

n
d

 L
o

a
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 U

n
lo

a
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 O

n
-S

tr
e

e
t 

P
a

rk
in

g
 P

la
c
e

s
)

 (
A

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
t 

1
6

) 
(R

iv
e

rh
e

a
d

 &
 C

h
e

v
e

n
in

g
) 

O
rd

e
r 

2
0

0
9

P
a
g
e
 8

 o
f 

1
1

A
p

p
en

d
ix

P
a

ri
sh

S
ch

ed
u

le
R

o
a
d

S
id

e
D

ef
in

it
io

n
T

y
p

e 
o

f 

re
st

ri
ct

io
n

T
im

e
D

a
y

M
a
x
 p

er
io

d
 

w
h

ic
h

 v
eh

ic
le

s 

m
a

y
 w

a
it

S
ca

le
 o

f 

ch
a
rg

es

A
re

a
T

y
p

es
 o

f 

v
eh

ic
le

U
n

iq
u

e 
R

ef

S
D

C
 2

0
0

9
-1

6

M
ar

lb
o

ro
u

g
h

 C
re

sc
en

t 
(n

o
rt

h
er

n
 

ju
n
ct

io
n
),

 w
es

tw
ar

d
s 

to
 a

 p
o
in

t 
9
m

 w
es

t 

o
f 

th
e 

b
o
u
n
d
ar

y
 o

f 
1
6
 &

 1
8
 L

y
n
d
h
u
rs

t 

D
ri

v
e.

2
3

R
iv

er
h
ea

d
1

L
y
n
d
h
u
rs

t 
D

ri
v
e 

N
o
rt

h
F

ro
m

 t
h

e 
ea

st
er

n
 k

er
b

li
n

e 
o

f 

M
ar

lb
o

ro
u

g
h

 C
re

sc
en

t 
(w

es
te

rn
 

ju
n
ct

io
n
),

 e
as

tw
ar

d
s 

fo
r 

1
6
m

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
4
5

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
L

y
n
d
h
u
rs

t 
D

ri
v
e 

N
o
rt

h
F

ro
m

 a
 p

o
in

t 
9

m
 w

es
t 

o
f 

th
e 

b
o

u
n

d
ar

y
 o

f 

1
6
 &

 1
8
 L

y
n
d
h
u
rs

t 
D

ri
v
e,

 w
es

tw
ar

d
s 

to
 

a 
p

o
in

t 
3
m

 e
as

t 
o
f 

th
e 

b
o
u
n
d
ar

y
 o

f 
3
8
 &

 

4
0
 L

y
n
d
h
u
rs

t 
D

ri
v
e

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

1
1
am

-

1
2
n
o
o
n

M
o

n
d

ay
 t

o
 

F
ri

d
ay

 

(e
x
cl

u
d
in

g
 

B
an

k
 

H
o
li

d
ay

s)

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3
-0

0
4
6

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
L

y
n
d
h
u
rs

t 
D

ri
v
e 

N
o
rt

h
F

ro
m

 a
 p

o
in

t 
3

m
 e

as
t 

o
f 

th
e 

b
o
u
n
d
ar

y
 o

f 

3
8
 &

 4
0
 L

y
n
d
h
u
rs

t 
D

ri
v
e,

 w
es

tw
ar

d
s 

to
 

a 
p

o
in

t 
1
6
m

 e
as

t 
o
f 

th
e 

ea
st

er
n
 k

er
b

li
n
e 

o
f 

M
ar

lb
o
ro

u
g
h
 C

re
sc

en
t 

(w
es

te
rn

 

ju
n
ct

io
n
)

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

1
1
am

-

1
2
n
o
o
n

M
o

n
d

ay
 t

o
 

F
ri

d
ay

 

(e
x
cl

u
d
in

g
 

B
an

k
 

H
o
li

d
ay

s)

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3
-0

0
4
7

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
L

y
n
d
h
u
rs

t 
D

ri
v
e 

S
o

u
th

F
ro

m
 t

h
e 

w
es

te
rn

 k
er

b
 l

in
e 

o
f 

B
ri

tt
ai

n
s 

L
an

e,
 w

es
tw

ar
d
s 

to
 t

h
e 

ea
st

er
n
 k

er
b

li
n
e 

o
f 

M
ar

lb
o
ro

u
g
h
 C

re
sc

en
t 

(s
o
u
th

er
n
 

ju
n
ct

io
n
)

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
4
8

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
L

y
n
d
h
u
rs

t 
D

ri
v
e 

S
o

u
th

F
ro

m
 t

h
e 

w
es

te
rn

 k
er

b
li

n
e 

o
f 

M
ar

lb
o

ro
u

g
h

 C
re

sc
en

t 
(s

o
u

th
er

n
 

ju
n
ct

io
n
),

 w
es

tw
ar

d
s 

fo
r 

2
3
m

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
4
9

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
L

y
n
d
h
u
rs

t 
D

ri
v
e 

S
o

u
th

F
ro

m
 t

h
e 

ea
st

er
n

 k
er

b
li

n
e 

o
f 

T
h

e 
C

lo
se

, 

ea
st

w
ar

d
s 

fo
r 

1
5
m

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
5
0

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
L

y
n
d
h
u
rs

t 
D

ri
v
e 

S
o

u
th

F
ro

m
 t

h
e 

w
es

te
rn

 k
er

b
li

n
e 

o
f 

T
h

e 
C

lo
se

, 

w
es

tw
ar

d
s 

fo
r 

1
5
m

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
5
1

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
L

y
n
d
h
u
rs

t 
D

ri
v
e 

S
o

u
th

F
ro

m
 t

h
e 

ea
st

er
n

 k
er

b
li

n
e 

o
f 

M
ar

lb
o
ro

u
g
h
 C

re
sc

en
t 

(w
es

te
rn

 

ju
n
ct

io
n
),

 e
as

tw
ar

d
s 

fo
r 

1
5
m

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
5
2

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
L

y
n
d
h
u
rs

t 
D

ri
v
e 

S
o

u
th

F
ro

m
 a

 p
o

in
t 

2
3

m
 w

es
t 

o
f 

th
e 

w
es

te
rn

 

k
er

b
li

n
e 

o
f 

M
ar

lb
o
ro

u
g
h
 C

re
sc

en
t 

(s
o
u
th

er
n
 j

u
n
ct

io
n
),

 w
es

tw
ar

d
s 

to
 a

 p
o
in

t 

1
5
m

 e
as

t 
o
f 

th
e 

ea
st

er
n
 k

er
b

li
n
e 

o
f 

T
h
e 

C
lo

se

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

1
1
am

-

1
2
n
o
o
n

M
o

n
d

ay
 t

o
 

F
ri

d
ay

 

(e
x
cl

u
d
in

g
 

B
an

k
 

H
o
li

d
ay

s)

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3
-0

0
5
3

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
L

y
n
d
h
u
rs

t 
D

ri
v
e 

S
o

u
th

F
ro

m
 a

 p
o

in
t 

1
5

m
 w

es
t 

o
f 

th
e 

w
es

te
rn

 

k
er

b
li

n
e 

o
f 

T
h
e 

C
lo

se
, 
w

es
tw

ar
d
s 

to
 a

 

p
o
in

t 
o
p
p

o
si

te
 a

 p
o
in

t 
3
m

 e
as

t 
o
f 

th
e 

b
o
u
n
d
ar

y
 o

f 
3
8
 &

 4
0
 L

y
n
d
h
u
rs

t 
 D

ri
v
e

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

4
p
m

-5
p
m

M
o

n
d

ay
 t

o
 

F
ri

d
ay

 

(e
x
cl

u
d
in

g
 

B
an

k
 

H
o
li

d
ay

s)

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
5
4

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
L

y
n
d
h
u
rs

t 
D

ri
v
e 

S
o

u
th

F
ro

m
 a

 p
o

in
t 

o
p

p
o

si
te

 a
 p

o
in

t 
3

m
 e

as
t 

o
f 

th
e 

b
o

u
n
d
ar

y
 o

f 
3
8
 &

 4
0
 L

y
n
d
h
u
rs

t 
 

D
ri

v
e,

 w
es

tw
ar

d
s 

to
 a

 p
o
in

t 
1
5
m

 e
as

t 
o
f 

th
e 

ea
st

er
n
 k

er
b

li
n
e 

o
f 

M
ar

lb
o
ro

u
g
h
 

C
re

sc
en

t 
(w

es
te

rn
 j

u
n

ct
io

n
)

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

4
p
m

-5
p
m

M
o

n
d

ay
 t

o
 

F
ri

d
ay

 

(e
x
cl

u
d
in

g
 

B
an

k
 

H
o
li

d
ay

s)

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
5
5

Agenda Item 4

Page 22



T
h

e
 K

e
n

t 
C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

(V
a

ri
o

u
s
 R

o
a

d
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

o
f 

S
e
v
e

n
o

a
k
s
) 

(P
ro

h
ib

it
io

n
 a

n
d

 R
e

s
tr

ic
ti
o

n
 o

f 
W

a
it
in

g
 a

n
d

 L
o

a
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 U

n
lo

a
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 O

n
-S

tr
e

e
t 

P
a

rk
in

g
 P

la
c
e

s
)

 (
A

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
t 

1
6

) 
(R

iv
e

rh
e

a
d

 &
 C

h
e

v
e

n
in

g
) 

O
rd

e
r 

2
0

0
9

P
a
g
e
 9

 o
f 

1
1

A
p

p
en

d
ix

P
a

ri
sh

S
ch

ed
u

le
R

o
a
d

S
id

e
D

ef
in

it
io

n
T

y
p

e 
o

f 

re
st

ri
ct

io
n

T
im

e
D

a
y

M
a
x
 p

er
io

d
 

w
h

ic
h

 v
eh

ic
le

s 

m
a

y
 w

a
it

S
ca

le
 o

f 

ch
a
rg

es

A
re

a
T

y
p

es
 o

f 

v
eh

ic
le

U
n

iq
u

e 
R

ef

S
D

C
 2

0
0

9
-1

6

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
L

y
n
d
h
u
rs

t 
D

ri
v
e 

(n
o
rt

h
er

n
 s

ec
ti

o
n
)

N
o
rt

h
w

es
t

F
ro

m
 t

h
e 

w
es

te
rn

 k
er

b
 l

in
e 

o
f 

B
ri

tt
ai

n
s 

L
an

e,
 s

o
u
th

w
es

tw
ar

d
s 

to
 t

h
e 

n
o
rt

h
er

n
 

k
er

b
li

n
e 

o
f 

L
y
n
d
h
u
rs

t 
D

ri
v
e

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
5
6

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
L

y
n
d
h
u
rs

t 
D

ri
v
e 

(n
o
rt

h
er

n
 s

ec
ti

o
n
)

S
o

u
th

ea
st

F
ro

m
 t

h
e 

w
es

te
rn

 k
er

b
 l

in
e 

o
f 

B
ri

tt
ai

n
s 

L
an

e,
 s

o
u
th

w
es

tw
ar

d
s 

to
 t

h
e 

n
o
rt

h
er

n
 

k
er

b
li

n
e 

o
f 

L
y
n
d
h
u
rs

t 
D

ri
v
e

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
5
7

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
M

ai
d

st
o

n
e 

R
o

ad
B

o
th

F
ro

m
 i

ts
 j

u
n

ct
io

n
 w

it
h
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 R

d
 i

n
 a

n
 

ea
st

er
ly

 d
ir

ec
ti

o
n
 f

o
r 

1
1
2
m

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
A

ll
 d

ay
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
5
8

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
M

ar
lb

o
ro

u
g

h
 

C
re

sc
en

t 
(e

as
te

rn
 

se
rv

ic
e 

ro
ad

)

E
as

t
T

h
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

it
s 

en
ti

re
 l

en
g

th
N

o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

4
p
m

-5
p
m

M
o

n
d

ay
 t

o
 

F
ri

d
ay

 

(e
x
cl

u
d
in

g
 

B
an

k
 

H
o
li

d
ay

s)

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
5
9

2
3

R
iv

er
h
ea

d
1

M
ar

lb
o

ro
u

g
h

 

C
re

sc
en

t 
(e

as
te

rn
 

se
rv

ic
e 

ro
ad

)

W
es

t
T

h
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

it
s 

en
ti

re
 l

en
g

th
N

o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

1
1
am

-

1
2
n
o
o
n

M
o

n
d

ay
 t

o
 

F
ri

d
ay

 

(e
x
cl

u
d
in

g
 

B
an

k
 

H
o
li

d
ay

s)

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3
-0

0
6
0

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
M

ar
lb

o
ro

u
g

h
 

C
re

sc
en

t 
(n

o
rt

h
er

n
 

se
ct

io
n

)

E
as

t
F

ro
m

 t
h

e 
n

o
rt

h
er

n
 k

er
b

li
n
e 

o
f 

L
y
n
d
h
u
rs

t 

D
ri

v
e 

(w
es

te
rn

 j
u
n
ct

io
n
),

 n
o
rt

h
w

ar
d
s 

fo
r 

1
5
m

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
6
1

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
M

ar
lb

o
ro

u
g

h
 

C
re

sc
en

t 
(n

o
rt

h
er

n
 

se
ct

io
n

)

E
as

t
F

ro
m

 t
h

e 
n

o
rt

h
er

n
 k

er
b

li
n

e 
o

f 
L

y
n

d
h

u
rs

t 

D
ri

v
e 

(c
en

tr
al

 j
u
n
ct

io
n
),

 n
o
rt

h
w

ar
d
s 

fo
r 

1
4
m

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
6
2

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
M

ar
lb

o
ro

u
g

h
 

C
re

sc
en

t 
(n

o
rt

h
er

n
 

se
ct

io
n

)

E
as

t 
an

d
 

n
o
rt

h

F
ro

m
 a

 p
o

in
t 

1
4

m
 n

o
rt

h
 o

f 
th

e 
n

o
rt

h
er

n
 

k
er

b
li

n
e 

o
f 

L
y
n
d
h
u
rs

t 
D

ri
v
e 

(c
en

tr
al

 

ju
n
ct

io
n
),

 n
o
rt

h
w

ar
d
s 

an
d
 w

es
tw

ar
d
s 

to
 

th
e 

b
o
u
n
d
ar

y
 o

f 
1
4
5
 &

 1
4
7
.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

1
1
am

-

1
2
n
o
o
n

M
o

n
d

ay
 t

o
 

F
ri

d
ay

 

(e
x
cl

u
d
in

g
 

B
an

k
 

H
o
li

d
ay

s)

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3
-0

0
6
3

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
M

ar
lb

o
ro

u
g

h
 

C
re

sc
en

t 
(n

o
rt

h
er

n
 

se
ct

io
n

)

W
es

t
F

ro
m

 t
h

e 
n

o
rt

h
er

n
 k

er
b

li
n

e 
o

f 
L

y
n

d
h

u
rs

t 

D
ri

v
e 

(c
en

tr
al

 j
u
n
ct

io
n
),

 n
o
rt

h
w

ar
d
s 

fo
r 

1
4
m

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
6
4

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
M

ar
lb

o
ro

u
g

h
 

C
re

sc
en

t 
(n

o
rt

h
er

n
 

se
ct

io
n

)

W
es

t 
an

d
 

so
u

th

F
ro

m
 a

 p
o

in
t 

1
4

m
 n

o
rt

h
 o

f 
th

e 
n

o
rt

h
er

n
 

k
er

b
li

n
e 

o
f 

L
y
n
d
h
u
rs

t 
D

ri
v
e 

(c
en

tr
al

 

ju
n
ct

io
n
),

 n
o
rt

h
w

ar
d
s 

an
d
 w

es
tw

ar
d
s 

to
 

th
e 

b
o
u
n
d
ar

y
 o

f 
9
6
 &

 9
8
.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

4
p
m

-5
p
m

M
o

n
d

ay
 t

o
 

F
ri

d
ay

 

(e
x
cl

u
d
in

g
 

B
an

k
 

H
o
li

d
ay

s)

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
6
5

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
M

ar
lb

o
ro

u
g

h
 

C
re

sc
en

t 
(s

o
u

th
er

n
 

se
ct

io
n

)

E
as

t
F

ro
m

 t
h

e 
so

u
th

er
n

 k
er

b
li

n
e 

o
f 

L
y
n

d
h

u
rs

t 

D
ri

v
e 

(w
es

te
rn

 j
u
n
ct

io
n
),

 s
o
u
th

w
ar

d
s 

fo
r 

1
5
m

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
6
6

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
M

ar
lb

o
ro

u
g

h
 

C
re

sc
en

t 
(s

o
u

th
er

n
 

se
ct

io
n

)

E
as

t 
an

d
 

so
u

th

F
ro

m
 a

 p
o

in
t 

2
7

m
 s

o
u

th
 o

f 
th

e 
so

u
th

er
n

 

k
er

b
li

n
e 

o
f 

L
y
n
d
h
u
rs

t 
D

ri
v
e 

(e
as

te
rn

 

ju
n
ct

io
n
),

 s
o
u
th

w
ar

d
s 

an
d
 w

es
tw

ar
d
s 

to
 

th
e 

b
o
u
n
d
ar

y
 o

f 
5
7
 &

 5
9
.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

1
1
am

-

1
2
n
o
o
n

M
o

n
d

ay
 t

o
 

F
ri

d
ay

 

(e
x
cl

u
d
in

g
 

B
an

k
 

H
o
li

d
ay

s)

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3
-0

0
6
7

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
M

ar
lb

o
ro

u
g

h
 

W
es

t
F

ro
m

 a
 p

o
in

t 
2

m
 s

o
u

th
 o

f 
th

e 
b

o
u

n
d

ar
y
 

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
6
8

Agenda Item 4

Page 23



T
h

e
 K

e
n

t 
C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

(V
a

ri
o

u
s
 R

o
a

d
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

o
f 

S
e
v
e

n
o

a
k
s
) 

(P
ro

h
ib

it
io

n
 a

n
d

 R
e

s
tr

ic
ti
o

n
 o

f 
W

a
it
in

g
 a

n
d

 L
o

a
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 U

n
lo

a
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 O

n
-S

tr
e

e
t 

P
a

rk
in

g
 P

la
c
e

s
)

 (
A

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
t 

1
6

) 
(R

iv
e

rh
e

a
d

 &
 C

h
e

v
e

n
in

g
) 

O
rd

e
r 

2
0

0
9

P
a
g
e
 1

0
 o

f 
1
1

A
p

p
en

d
ix

P
a

ri
sh

S
ch

ed
u

le
R

o
a
d

S
id

e
D

ef
in

it
io

n
T

y
p

e 
o

f 

re
st

ri
ct

io
n

T
im

e
D

a
y

M
a
x
 p

er
io

d
 

w
h

ic
h

 v
eh

ic
le

s 

m
a

y
 w

a
it

S
ca

le
 o

f 

ch
a
rg

es

A
re

a
T

y
p

es
 o

f 

v
eh

ic
le

U
n

iq
u

e 
R

ef

S
D

C
 2

0
0

9
-1

6

C
re

sc
en

t 
(s

o
u

th
er

n
 

se
ct

io
n

)

o
f 

9
3
 &

 9
5
 M

ar
lb

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

re
sc

en
t,

 

n
o
rt

h
w

ar
d
s 

to
 a

 p
o
in

t 
4
m

 n
o
rt

h
 o

f 
th

e 

b
o
u
n
d
ar

y
 o

f 
9
7
 &

 9
9
 M

ar
lb

o
ro

u
g
h
 

C
re

sc
en

t

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
M

ar
lb

o
ro

u
g

h
 

C
re

sc
en

t 
(s

o
u

th
er

n
 

se
ct

io
n

)

W
es

t 
an

d
 

n
o
rt

h

F
ro

m
 a

 p
o

in
t 

2
5

m
 s

o
u

th
 o

f 
th

e 
so

u
th

er
n

 

k
er

b
li

n
e 

o
f 

L
y
n
d
h
u
rs

t 
D

ri
v
e,

 s
o
u
th

w
ar

d
s 

an
d
 s

o
u
th

w
es

tw
ar

d
s 

to
 t

h
e 

b
o
u
n
d
ar

y
 o

f 

4
8
 &

 5
0
 M

ar
lb

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

re
sc

en
t

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

4
p
m

-5
p
m

M
o

n
d

ay
 t

o
 

F
ri

d
ay

 

(e
x
cl

u
d
in

g
 

B
an

k
 

H
o
li

d
ay

s)

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
6
9

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
O

ld
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
ad

E
as

t
F

ro
m

 a
 p

o
in

t 
le

v
el

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

so
u
th

er
n
 

ed
g
e 

o
f 

th
e 

ce
n
tr

e 
is

la
n
d
 o

f 
th

e 
en

tr
an

ce
 

ro
u
n
d
ab

o
u
t 

in
 a

 n
o
rt

h
er

ly
 d

ir
ec

ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

1
1
m

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
A

ll
 d

ay
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
7
0

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
O

ld
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
ad

W
es

t
F

ro
m

 i
ts

 j
u

n
ct

io
n

 w
it

h
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 R

d
 i

n
 a

 

n
o
rt

h
er

ly
 d

ir
ec

ti
o
n
 t

o
 a

 p
o
in

t 
o
p
p
o
si

te
 a

 

p
o
in

t 
in

 l
in

e 
w

it
h
 t

h
e 

n
o
rt

h
er

n
 f

la
n
k
 w

al
l 

o
f 

S
ax

o
n
 H

o
u
se

.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
A

ll
 d

ay
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
7
1

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
S

co
tt

s 
W

ay
 

B
o
th

F
ro

m
 i

ts
 j

u
n

ct
io

n
 w

it
h

 L
o
n

d
o

n
 R

o
ad

 

(A
2
2
4
),

 n
o
rt

h
-e

as
tw

ar
d
s 

fo
r 

1
0
m

.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
A

ll
 d

ay
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
7
2

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
S

co
tt

s 
W

ay
 

N
o
rt

h
F

ro
m

 a
 p

o
in

t 
1

2
m

 e
as

t 
o

f 
it

s 
ju

n
ct

io
n

 

w
it

h
 A

2
2
4
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
ad

, 
ea

st
w

ar
d
s 

fo
r 

8
m

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
A

ll
 d

ay
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
7
3

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
S

co
tt

s 
W

ay
 

S
o

u
th

F
ro

m
 a

 p
o

in
t 

1
2

m
 e

as
t 

o
f 

it
s 

ju
n
ct

io
n
 

w
it

h
 A

2
2
4
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
ad

, 
ea

st
w

ar
d
s 

fo
r 

8
m

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
A

ll
 d

ay
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
7
4

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
S

t 
M

ar
y
's

 D
ri

v
e 

E
as

t
F

ro
m

 i
ts

 j
u

n
ct

io
n

 w
it

h
 W

o
rs

h
ip

s 
H

il
l 

(A
2
5
),

 s
o
u
th

-e
as

tw
ar

d
s,

 f
o
ll

o
w

in
g
 t

h
e 

k
er

b
li

n
e 

to
 a

 p
o
in

t 
3
m

 s
o
u
th

ea
st

 o
f 

th
e 

b
o
u
n
d
ar

y
 o

f 
R

iv
er

h
ea

d
 M

ew
s 

an
d
 3

 S
t 

M
ar

y
s 

D
ri

v
e.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
A

ll
 d

ay
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
7
5

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
S

t 
M

ar
y
's

 D
ri

v
e 

W
es

t
F

ro
m

 i
ts

 j
u

n
ct

io
n

 w
it

h
 W

o
rs

h
ip

s 
H

il
l 

(A
2
5
),

 s
o
u
th

-e
as

tw
ar

d
s,

 f
o
ll

o
w

in
g
 t

h
e 

k
er

b
li

n
e 

to
 a

 p
o
in

t 
o
p
p

o
si

te
 t

h
e 

b
o

u
n

d
ar

y
 

o
f 

R
iv

er
h
ea

d
 M

ew
s 

an
d
 3

 S
t 

M
ar

y
s 

D
ri

v
e.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
A

ll
 d

ay
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
7
6

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
T

h
e 

C
lo

se
E

as
t 

an
d
 

so
u

th
ea

st

F
ro

m
 t

h
e 

so
u

th
er

n
 k

er
b

li
n

e 
o

f 
L

y
n

d
h

u
rs

t 

D
ri

v
e,

 s
o
u
th

w
ar

d
s 

fo
r 

1
5
m

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
7
7

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
T

h
e 

C
lo

se
E

as
t 

an
d
 

so
u

th
ea

st

F
ro

m
 a

 p
o

in
t 

1
5

m
 s

o
u

th
 o

f 
th

e 
so

u
th

er
n

 

k
er

b
li

n
e 

o
f 

L
y
n
d
h
u
rs

t 
D

ri
v
e,

 

so
u

th
w

es
tw

ar
d

s 
to

 t
h

e 
b

o
u

n
d

ar
y
 o

f 
1

4
 &

 

1
6
 T

h
e 

C
lo

se
.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

1
1
am

-

1
2
n
o
o
n

M
o

n
d

ay
 t

o
 

F
ri

d
ay

 

(e
x
cl

u
d
in

g
 

B
an

k
 

H
o
li

d
ay

s)

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3
-0

0
7
8

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
T

h
e 

C
lo

se
W

es
t 

an
d
 

n
o
rt

h
w

es
t

F
ro

m
 t

h
e 

so
u

th
er

n
 k

er
b

li
n

e 
o

f 
L

y
n

d
h

u
rs

t 

D
ri

v
e,

 s
o
u
th

w
ar

d
s 

fo
r 

1
7
m

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
7
9

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
T

h
e 

C
lo

se
W

es
t 

an
d
 

n
o
rt

h
w

es
t

F
ro

m
 a

 p
o
in

t 
1
7
m

 s
o
u
th

 o
f 

th
e 

so
u
th

er
n
 

k
er

b
li

n
e 

o
f 

L
y
n
d
h
u
rs

t 
D

ri
v
e,

 

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

4
p
m

-5
p
m

M
o

n
d

ay
 t

o
 

F
ri

d
ay

 

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
8
0

Agenda Item 4

Page 24



T
h

e
 K

e
n

t 
C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

(V
a

ri
o

u
s
 R

o
a

d
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

o
f 

S
e
v
e

n
o

a
k
s
) 

(P
ro

h
ib

it
io

n
 a

n
d

 R
e

s
tr

ic
ti
o

n
 o

f 
W

a
it
in

g
 a

n
d

 L
o

a
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 U

n
lo

a
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 O

n
-S

tr
e

e
t 

P
a

rk
in

g
 P

la
c
e

s
)

 (
A

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
t 

1
6

) 
(R

iv
e

rh
e

a
d

 &
 C

h
e

v
e

n
in

g
) 

O
rd

e
r 

2
0

0
9

P
a
g
e
 1

1
 o

f 
1
1

A
p

p
en

d
ix

P
a

ri
sh

S
ch

ed
u

le
R

o
a
d

S
id

e
D

ef
in

it
io

n
T

y
p

e 
o

f 

re
st

ri
ct

io
n

T
im

e
D

a
y

M
a
x
 p

er
io

d
 

w
h

ic
h

 v
eh

ic
le

s 

m
a

y
 w

a
it

S
ca

le
 o

f 

ch
a
rg

es

A
re

a
T

y
p

es
 o

f 

v
eh

ic
le

U
n

iq
u

e 
R

ef

S
D

C
 2

0
0

9
-1

6

so
u

th
w

es
tw

ar
d

s 
to

 t
h

e 
b

o
u

n
d

ar
y
 o

f 
1

4
 &

 

1
6
 T

h
e 

C
lo

se
.

(e
x
cl

u
d
in

g
 

B
an

k
 

H
o
li

d
ay

s)

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
T

h
e 

S
q

u
ar

e
N

o
rt

h
B

et
w

ee
n
 i

ts
 j

u
n
ct

io
n
s 

w
it

h
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
ad

 

(A
2
2
4
) 

an
d
 C

h
ip

st
ea

d
 L

an
e.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
A

ll
 d

ay
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
8
1

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
W

it
ch

es
 L

an
e

E
as

t
F

ro
m

 i
ts

 j
u

n
ct

io
n

 w
it

h
 B

ar
n
fi

el
d

 R
o

ad
, 

so
u

th
-e

as
tw

ar
d
s 

fo
r 

1
5
m

.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
8
2

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
W

it
ch

es
 L

an
e

E
as

t
F

ro
m

 i
ts

 j
u

n
ct

io
n

 w
it

h
 W

o
rs

h
ip

s 
H

il
l 

(A
2
5
),

 n
o
rt

h
w

es
tw

ar
d
s 

fo
ll

o
w

in
g
 t

h
e 

k
er

b
li

n
e 

to
 a

 p
o
in

t 
o
p
p

o
si

te
 t

h
e 

b
o
u
n
d
ar

y
 

o
f 

3
0
 &

 3
2
 W

it
ch

es
 L

an
e.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
8
3

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
W

o
rs

h
ip

s 
H

il
l 

(A
2
5
)

N
o
rt

h
w

es
t

F
ro

m
 t

h
e 

p
ar

is
h

 b
o

u
n

d
ar

y
 w

it
h

 

C
h

ev
en

in
g

 P
ar

is
h

, 
n

o
rt

h
ea

st
w

ar
d

s,
 

fo
ll

o
w

in
g
 t

h
e 

k
er

b
li

n
e 

to
 a

 p
o
in

t 
1
5
m

 

n
o
rt

h
ea

st
 o

f 
th

e 
n
o
rt

h
ea

st
er

n
 k

er
b

li
n
e 

o
f 

C
ra

n
m

er
 R

o
ad

.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
8
4

2
3

R
iv

er
h
ea

d
1

W
o
rs

h
ip

s 
H

il
l 

(A
2
5
)

S
o

u
th

ea
st

F
ro

m
 t

h
e 

p
ar

is
h

 b
o

u
n

d
ar

y
 w

it
h

 

C
h

ev
en

in
g

 P
ar

is
h

, 
n

o
rt

h
ea

st
w

ar
d

s 
to

 a
 

p
o
in

t 
3
5
m

 s
o
u
th

w
es

t 
o
f 

th
e 

so
u

th
w

es
te

rn
 k

er
b

li
n

e 
o

f 
C

ra
n

m
er

 R
o

ad

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
E

v
er

y
 d

ay
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
A

p
p

 2
3

-0
0
8
5

2
3

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

1
W

o
rs

h
ip

s 
H

il
l

(A
2
5
)

S
o

u
th

ea
st

F
ro

m
 a

 p
o

in
t 

6
3

m
 s

o
u

th
-w

es
t 

o
f 

it
s 

-

ea
st

w
ar

d
s 

fo
r 

1
0
3
m

.

N
o
 w

ai
ti

n
g

A
ll

 t
im

es
A

ll
 d

ay
s

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

A
p
p

 2
3

-0
0
8
6

Agenda Item 4

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

Page 27



Agenda Item 4

Page 28



Agenda Item 4

Page 29



Agenda Item 4

Page 30



Agenda Item 4

Page 31



Agenda Item 4

Page 32



Agenda Item 4

Page 33



Agenda Item 4

Page 34



Agenda Item 4

Page 35



Agenda Item 4

Page 36



Agenda Item 4

Page 37



Agenda Item 4

Page 38



Agenda Item 4

Page 39



Agenda Item 4

Page 40



Agenda Item 4

Page 41



Agenda Item 4

Page 42



Agenda Item 4

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



S
T
 M

A
R
Y
'S

D
R
IV

E

R
a
g
s
to

n
e
s

B
a
rn

s
id

e

2

4

5

20

27

15

1

5
,6

R
iv
er

h
ea

d
 M

ew
s

A
25

 W
O
R
S
H
IP

S
 H

IL
L

R
iv

e
rh

e
a
d

H
o
u
s
e

T
h
e

C
o
tt

a
g
eB

a
n
k

2

9a

9

7
23

21

1
2

3

l

R
ep

ro
d

u
ce

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e 
O

rd
n

a
n

ce
 S

u
rv

ey
 m

a
p

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

p
er

m
is

si
o

n
 o

f

th
e 

co
n

tr
o

ll
er

 o
f 

H
er

 M
a

je
st

y
's

 S
ta

ti
o

n
er

y
 O

ff
ic

e,
 C

ro
w

n
 C

o
p

y
ri

g
h

t
2

0
0

0
.

U
n

a
u

th
o

ri
se

d
 r

ep
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
 i

n
fr

in
g

es
 C

ro
w

n
 C

o
p

y
ri

g
h

t 
a

n
d

 m
a

y

le
a

d
 t

o
 p

ro
se

cu
ti

o
n

 o
r 

ci
v

il
 p

ro
ce

ed
in

g
s.

D
a

te
R

ev
is

io
n

R
ef

D
ra

w
n

T
it

le

S
ev

en
o

a
k

s
D

 I
 S

 T
 R

 I
 C

 T
   

 C
 O

 U
 N

 C
 I

 L

S
ca

le
 1

:1
0

0
0

F
il

e 
re

f 
: 

T
/R

iv
er

h
ea

d

D
a

te
 :

 9
/0

4
/1

0

D
ra

w
n

 b
y

 :
 A

C
B

F
il

e 
n

a
m

e 
: 

R
iv

er
h

ea
d

 -
 S

t 
M

a
ry

s 
D

ri
v

e 
- 

0
9

0
4

10
.p

d
f

K
ey

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 W
a

it
in

g
 R

es
tr

ic
ti

o
n

s 
- 

C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
S

t 
M

a
ry

's
 D

ri
v

e
R

iv
er

h
ea

d

E
x

is
ti

n
g

 d
o

u
b

le
 y

el
lo

w
 l

in
es

If
 y

o
u

 f
in

d
 t

h
e 

p
la

n
s 

o
r 

co
lo

u
rs

 c
o

n
fu

si
n

g
, 

p
le

a
se

 t
ry

 v
ie

w
in

g
 t

h
e 

p
la

n
s 

o
n

 t
h

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
eb

si
te

w
w

w
.s

ev
en

o
a

k
s.

g
o

v
.u

k

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 d
o

u
b

le
 y

el
lo

w
 l

in
es

Agenda Item 4

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

SEVENOAKS JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD – 14 DECEMBER 2011 

PETITION – VALLEY ROAD, FAWKHAM 

Report of the: Director of Kent Highways and Transportation 

Status: For Consideration 

Executive Summary: This report describes a petition received by the parents at 
Fawkham School. It requests action to lower the speed limit from 40mph to 20mph 
and for additional road safety measures along Valley Road. 

This report supports the Key Aim of Reducing speed, encouraging safer driving 
and tackling known speeding crash hotspots. Also improving pedestrian safety, 
including measures to improve access for people with disabilities as indicated in the 
Sevenoaks Community Plan.  

Chairman Cllr James London 

Head of Service Kent County Council Highways and Transportation – Head of 
Transportation – Tim Read 

Recommendations:   

i. That the highway authority does not pursue any changes in the road 
environment or a reduction in the speed limit  along Valley Road in the vicinity of 
Fawkham School. 

ii. Members note the provision of parking facilities and pedestrian access into the 
school is not the responsibility of the highway authority. 

iii. That the lead petitioner is informed of this Board’s decision. 

 

Background and Discussion 

1 A petition signed by 135 people has been received from parents at Fawkham 
School.  A copy of the petition (excluding signatories) is included as Appendix 
A.   

2 The petitioners are requesting the following which have been addressed under 
separate headings below: 

• The speed limit is reduced from 40mph to 20mph. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 47



 
Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011 

 

 

• Additional road safety measures including a pedestrian crossing, school 
crossing patrol, physical traffic calming measures and school keep clear 
markings. 

• Constant maintenance of signage. 

• Limited school parking capacity to be addressed. 

Reduction in the speed limit 

3 The current speed limit of Valley Road outside Fawkham School is 40mph.  
Kent Highway Services commissioned Jacobs to carry out automatic traffic 
counts on Valley Road in close proximity to Fawkham School in October 2010.   

4 The Survey results for Valley Road showed that overall, the 85th percentile 
speed for northbound traffic was 38.3mph and for southbound traffic was 
38.3mph.  The 85th percentile is the speed not exceeded by 85% of drivers and 
is the national standard measurement of drivers’ speed.  On this evidence, the 
current 40mph limit is well observed.  The corresponding speeds in the school 
drop off period (08:30 – 09:00, weekdays) were 31.8mph for northbound and 
32.4mph for southbound traffic and in the afternoon pick up (15:00 -15:30, 
weekdays) were 33.3mph for northbound and 32.2mph for southbound traffic. 

5 A lower speed limit would require physical changes in the drivers’ environment 
to ensure that it would be self enforcing. 

6 Officers carried out a survey of the speed limits outside Fawkham School 
along Valley Road. Kent County Council follows national guidance laid down 
by the Department for Transport (DfT) in setting speed limits. The details are 
contained in a document called “Circular Roads 1/2006 Setting Local Speed 
Limits”. An important principle of this guidance is that, “speed limits should be 
evidence led, self explaining and seek to reinforce people’s assessment of 
what is a safe speed to travel. They should encourage self-compliance and not 
be seen by drivers as being a target speed at which to drive in all 
circumstances.” 

7 Since the Police are responsible for enforcing speeds limits, any proposed 
change must have their support. In accordance with the DfT Circular 1/2006, 
officers consulted with the Police to assess the appropriate speed limit along 
the Valley Road outside Fawkham School. Appendix B contains a letter 
received from the Police.  The Police have confirmed that they would not 
support a 20mph limit outside the school however they would consider 
supporting a 30mph speed limit with additional measures to ensure vehicle 
speeds are reduced to 30mph.  The grounds for the police not endorsing a 
20mph speed limit are in accordance with DfT Circular 1/2006. 

8 To assess the justification for funding for the necessary physical works to 
achieve lower drivers’ speeds, potential schemes are prioritised for inclusion in 
the Crash Remedial Measure (CRM) Programme.  The 3 year crash record for 
Valley Road in the vicinity of Fawkham School show there is no consistent 
pattern of crashes which suggest lowering the speed limit would not reduce 

Agenda Item 5

Page 48



 
Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011 

 

 

the crash record.  Accordingly this proposal will not be funded from KCC’s 
CRM programme. 

 

Additional safety measures 

9 Formalised crossing facility/school crossing patrol – Because of the conflict 
between pedestrians and vehicles at the existing school access, this is only 
feasible if a new pedestrian access into the school and corresponding 
changes to the footway are made.  None of this would be funded by the 
highway authority.  If the changes were made, then it would be for the school 
to consider whether to fund and operate a crossing patrol. 

10 School Keep Clear Markings – The school Keep Clears are already marked for 
the appropriate length.  The district wide School Keep Clear Order is currently 
being progressed as a Member Highway Funded scheme by Sevenoaks 
District Council. 

Maintenance of signage 

11 Following on from the submission of the petition, the Highway Steward for 
area undertook an ad-hoc inspection of this section of Valley Road, and as a 
result of this inspection, arranged for the lining on this section of Valley Road 
to be refreshed; this included the edge of carriageway lining, ‘School Keep 
Clear’ and the ‘School Slow’ markings on the approach to the school. These 
works have now been completed. 

In addition, the Highway Steward has also raised a job for approx 540m worth 
of ‘siding’ to be undertaken on the footway accessing the school to restore the 
full width of the footway, and some minor patching to the footway where 
necessary. 

On completion of this additional work on the footway, this will complete the 
maintenance work in this section of Valley Road; however KCC Highways will 
continue to monitor Valley Road in line with the statutory inspection 
requirements, and undertake works as necessary. 

School drop-off parking. 

12 Parking facilities for schools are not provided by Kent County Council 
Highways.  Therefore any concerns should be directed to the school. 

 

Key Implications 

Financial;  Resource (non-financial); Legal etc.; Value For Money 

13 None for Sevenoaks District Council or Kent County Council as a result of this 
report. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 49



 
Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011 

 

 

 

Risk Assessment Statement  

14 None. 

 

Conclusions 

15 The County Council’s policy is that any proposed changes to speed limits or 
installation of speed-reducing measures need to demonstrate a quantifiable 
injury crash saving. Such schemes will need to be supported by the Police and 
prioritised for potential inclusion in the Crash Remedial Measure (CRM) 
Programme for 2012 / 13. 

16 It is the case that the pattern of reported crashes in the last three years 
suggests that there would have been no fewer crashes had the speed limit 
been lower.  Accordingly this proposal will not be funded from KCC’s CRM 
programme. 

17 Improvements to pedestrian access into the school, and parking for parents 
are for the school and not the highway authority to consider. 

18 In light of the above Members are asked to agree the recommendations. 

 

Appendices 

Appendix A - Copy of Petition. 

Appendix B - Letter from the Police. 

 

Sources of Information: The background papers pertaining to the report 
are held on KHS file WK/T/SEV/Fawk/01. 

Contact Officer: Laura Squires, Kent County Council      
08458 247 800 

Director: John Burr – Kent County Council                 
08458 247 800 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 50



Agenda Item 5

Page 51



Agenda Item 5

Page 52



Agenda Item 5

Page 53



Agenda Item 5

Page 54



SEVENOAKS JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD – 14 DECEMBER 2011 

SEVENOAKS PEDESTRIAN GUARDRAILING ASSESSMENT 

Report of the: Director of Kent Highways and Transportation 

Status: For Consideration 

Executive Summary: This report informs the Board of the results of a survey 
of pedestrian guardrailing in Sevenoaks and seeks comments on proposals to 
remove sections of guardrailing from some sites. 

This report supports the Key Aim of improving pedestrian safety.  

Chairman Cllr James London 

Director Kent County Council Highways and Transportation 

Recommendations:   

The Board is asked to consider and comment on the proposals to manage 
sections of guard railing in Sevenoaks. 

 

Introduction 

1. On behalf of Kent County Council, Jacobs have carried out a survey of 
pedestrian guardrailing in Sevenoaks and are seeking comments on 
proposals to remove sections of guardrailing from some sites.  

Background 

2. The main purpose of guardrailing is to improve safety by trying to 
prevent pedestrians from crossing the road at an inappropriate place or 
from straying into the road inadvertently. Guardrailing can also be used 
to offer some protection to pedestrians at locations where the swept 
path of large vehicles, such as buses and heavy goods vehicles, takes 
the vehicles close to the footway, sometimes overhanging it. 

3. It is recognised that where pedestrian guardrailing is badly sited or over 
installed it not only alienates pedestrians but also looks unsightly, 
easily becomes damaged which in turn leads to increased maintenance 
costs and complaints. Indeed poor guard railing can lead to an increase 
in pedestrian crashes. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 55



 
Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011 

 
4. A full report was presented to the Joint Transportation Board on June 

15th 2011, and the following comments were agreed: 

• Site 1 – A225, Tonbridge Road, (outside Sevenoaks School & 
junction with Oak Lane). These railings are to be retained. 

• Site 2 – A224, London road / Tubbs Hill & Hitchen Hatch Lane. A 
number of panels near the Station Access are to be retained 
until the additional cycle stands are installed at the station – 
see plan for details.  

• Site 3 – A225, Dartford Road junction with B2019, Seal Hollow 
Road. These railings are to be retained. 

• Site 4 – A225 Dartford Road / High Street / Suffolk way / 
Pembroke Road. Railings to be removed. 

• Site 5 – A225, High Street, (outside Tesco Metro). Railings to be 
removed. 

• Site 6 – A225, High Street, (outside Tesco Metro). Railings to be 
removed. 

• Site 7 – A224, London Road, Railings to be removed. 

• Site 8 – A224, London Road / Pembroke Road / Argyle Road.  
Railings to be removed. 

5. Appendix 1 is a report with the final recommendations following 
comments received, and has copies of all the plans indicating the 8 
different locations listed above.  

6. Kent County Councils’ contractor would be carrying out the removals 
with the panels being recycled. If decorative or ornate railings and 
panels are highlighted for removal the Borough Council will be able to 
retain these for repairs or future use. 

Options available 

7. Members of the Board can: 

a. Support the proposals to remove guardrailing at the sites 
 identified in Appendix 1. 

b. Reject some/all of the proposals. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 56



 
Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011 

 
Implications 

Financial  

8. Funding will be provided by Kent County Council. A budget allocation 
has not been secured specifically for this commission.  

Programming  

9. It is proposed to undertake the works on a site by site basis where 
damage has occurred to existing barrier to achieve value for money 
and efficiency. 

Conclusion 

10. The removal of guardrailing which is not required for pedestrian safety 
or for other reasons is in line with national guidance to de-clutter 
streets. It will also reduce on-going maintenance costs and help 
improve the appearance of the public realm. 

 

Contact Officer 

Julian Cook    08458 247 800  

Appendices 

Appendix 1 –  Report – following comments received 

Agenda Item 6

Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
Kent Pedestrian Guard Railing Assessment 
 
Sevenoaks – Final Report 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
July 2011 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 59



 

 

 Document control sheet BPP 04 F8 

Project: Kent Guard Railing Assessment Job No: B1649000 
Document Title: Sevenoaks – Final Report    

 
Originator Checked by Reviewed by Approved by 

NAME NAME  NAME  NAME ORIGINAL 
R. Fletcher S. Watkins G. Williams G. Williams 

DATE SIGNATURE SIGNATURE SIGNATURE SIGNATURE 
20 October 2010 

 

 

  

Document Status
 

 
NAME NAME  NAME  NAME REVISION 
S. Watkins A. Fletcher G. Williams G. Williams 

DATE SIGNATURE SIGNATURE SIGNATURE SIGNATURE 
15 September 

2011 
 

  

Document Status
 

 
NAME NAME  NAME  NAME REVISION 
    

DATE SIGNATURE SIGNATURE SIGNATURE SIGNATURE 
     

Document Status
 

 
NAME NAME  NAME  NAME REVISION 
    

DATE SIGNATURE SIGNATURE SIGNATURE SIGNATURE 
     

Document Status
 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 60



 

 

 Contents 

 
1. Foreword 
 
2. Methodology 

 
3. Site Conclusions / Recommendations  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      1

Agenda Item 6

Page 61



 

 
  

1 Foreword 

An assessment of the pedestrian guard railing in Sevenoaks town centre was 
carried out in October 2010. A report on the findings and recommendations was 
sent to County Members, KCC’s Transport and Development team and Sevenoaks 
District Council in November 2010.  
 
Following this initial consultation the report was taken to the Joint Transportation 
Board on 15th June 2011. Each of the recommendations was discussed. This report 
details the final recommendations as agreed by JTB members.  
 
This report contains recommendations to retain, partially remove or wholly remove 
pedestrian guard railing from 8 sites across Sevenoaks. 
 
There is an increasing emphasis on improving the streetscape by removing street 
clutter and providing better pedestrian accessibility whilst still maintaining road 
safety. It is recognised that where pedestrian guard railing is badly sited or over 
installed it not only alienates pedestrians but also looks unsightly, easily becomes 
damaged which in turn leads to increased maintenance costs and complaints.  
 
Guard railing can be the right solution when the objectives of installing it (and in the 
right amount) are fully considered. The main purpose of guard railing is to improve 
safety by trying to prevent pedestrians from crossing the road at an inappropriate 
place or from straying into the road inadvertently. Guard railing can also be used to 
offer some protection to pedestrians at locations where the path of large vehicles, 
such as buses and heavy goods vehicles, takes the vehicles close to the footway, 
sometimes overhanging it. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 

Agenda Item 6

Page 62



 

 
  

2   Methodology 

The assessments were conducted within an approximate 750metre (820yard) radius 
(1 mile diameter) of the High Street to incorporate the main pedestrian 
thoroughfares in the town centre (see figure 1). Following a request from T & D the 
assessment was extended to cover the pedestrian guard railing in the vicinity of the 
Sevenoaks railway station. 
  
Each site has been assessed by a fully qualified road safety auditor and a road 
safety engineer. Records of each site will be maintained by the KHS Highway 
Manager for West Kent. 
 
The surveys have allowed sufficient adjacent road space to be included; the exact 
length of road surveyed to make up a site has been dictated by the existence of side 
roads, major entrances / exits and the current extent of the existing guard railing. 
 
The type of pedestrian guard railing assessed has been categorised into one of 
three types as shown below: 
 

Standard type     ‘See through’ type 

          
 

 Decorative type 

   
The decorative type of railing has a number of variations. 
 
The site assessment was conducted by assessing the effectiveness of individual 
guardrails within the site and effectiveness as a whole. Photographs were taken and 
all technical data pertaining to the site was recorded including guard rail 
measurements, carriageway and footway width, proximity of junctions, type of 
pedestrian crossing and proximity to other crossings etc. Local trip attractors and 
generators have also been identified to assess pedestrian desire lines. 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 63



 

 
  

Where appropriate the width of the carriageway and its arrangement into lanes has 
been recorded as this relates to the degree of difficulty that people have in crossing.  
 
The width of the available footway has also been taken and consideration given to 
the effect the guard railing has on reducing the effective footway width. 
 
Illustrated diagrams indicating pedestrian guardrail locations, any proposals to install 
additional guardrail panels, the replacement of any damaged panels and to remove 
or retain the guardrails have been included. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
      4 

Agenda Item 6

Page 64



  
 

 

P
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

 G
u

a
rd

 R
a

il
 A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t:
 

 T
o

w
n

 C
e
n

tr
e

: 
A

p
p

ro
x

im
a

te
 r

a
d

iu
s

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 H
ig

h
 

S
tr

e
e

t 
- 
7
5
0
m

e
tr

e
s
 (

8
2

0
y
a

rd
s
) 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 65



 

 
  

3 

 
Site 1 Location: 

Site 1 is located on the A225 Tonbridge Road outside the Sevenoaks School and 
the junction with Oak Lane.  

  
  Types of Guard Railing: 

 
Standard See through Decorative Post and Rail 

   Yes 

 
Comments received 

 
Members of the Joint Transportation Board requested that the railings are retained 
as these posts and rails are part of the street scene and of historic / architectural 
benefit. Members thought the railings were helpful to guide school children in the 
area, especially as they wait for buses. They are also of a benefit to the elderly due 
to the close proximity to the Almshouses. 
 
Conclusions / Recommendations 
 
The guard railings are located outside the Sevenoaks School and the junction with 
Oak Lane. During peak times there is a high volume of vehicular traffic and the 
Pelican Crossing at the site has a high volume of pedestrian movement, in particular 
school children.  
 
The post and railing type of panel installed offers little benefit as a guide or 
protective device for either pedestrians or vehicles. JTB Members requested that the 
railings are retained at the site. 
 
The general condition of the post and railings are fair.  
 

 

• It is recommended to retain the post and railing at site 1.  
 
 

Illustrated Diagram of site 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6 

Agenda Item 6

Page 66



  
 

 

 
 

S
it

e
 1

 L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
: 

A
t 

th
e

 j
u

n
c

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 A
2

5
5

 

T
o

n
b

ri
d

g
e
 R

o
a

d
 a

n
d

 O
a

k
 L

a
n

e
 

P
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

 G
u

a
rd

 R
a

il
in

g
 

R
e

ta
in

 -
 -
--

--
--

--
 

1
1

 p
o

s
ts

 a
n

d
 1

0
 r

a
il

s
 

1
0

 p
o

s
ts

 a
n

d
 9

 r
a

il
s

 

1
3

 p
o

s
ts

 a
n

d
 1

2
 r

a
il

s
 

3
 p

o
s

ts
 a

n
d

 2
 r

a
il
s

 

5
 p

o
s

ts
 a

n
d

 4
 r

a
il
s

 

1
6

 p
o

s
ts

 a
n

d
 1

5
 r

a
il

s
 

A
2

2
5
 T

o
n

b
ri

d
g

e
 R

o
a
d

  

Agenda Item 6

Page 67



 

 
  

Site 2 Location: 

Site 2 is located at the junction with the A224 London Road/Tubs Hill and Hitchen 
Hatch Lane.  

  
  Types of Guard Railing: 

 
Standard See through Decorative Post and Rail 

 Yes   

 
Comments received 
The railings are used to chain up bicycles. The railings should not be removed until 
Network Rail had provided sufficient storage places for bicycles. 
 
The Joint Transportation Board Members agreed they were in favour of the 
proposals subject to sufficient bicycle storage and that the station entrance does not 
become blocked with cars dropping people off. 

 
Conclusions / Recommendations 
 
The pedestrian guard railings are located outside the railway station where there is a 
high volume of vehicular traffic and the pelican crossing at the site has a high 
volume of pedestrian movement.  
 
The majority of the pedestrian guard railing at the site offers little benefit as a guide 
or protective device and is mainly utilised by cyclists for securing their bicycles to the 
railing.  
 
Site observations revealed a high number of pedestrians not using the controlled 
crossing but instead are crossing diagonally across the road to and from the railway 
station entrance. These movements’ results in the pedestrians walking for a 
significant distance on the carriageway as the existing pedestrian guard rails prevent 
access onto the nearest footway.  
 
The footway at the site varies between 1.5 - 4.5metres 
 
There needs to be prior notification of the proposed guard rail removal date issued 
to cyclists. 
 

 

• It is recommended to partially remove the pedestrian guard railing at 
site 2. 

• The railings around the station should not be removed until alternative 
provision is made for cycle storage. 

 
 

Illustrated Diagram of site 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      8 

Agenda Item 6

Page 68



  
 

 

6
 p

a
n

e
ls

 

6
 p

a
n

e
ls

 

6
 p

a
n

e
ls

 

2
9

 p
a

n
e

ls
 

1
0

 p
a

n
e

ls
 

H
it

c
h

e
n

 H
a
tc

h
 L

a
n

e
 

A
2

2
4
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 R

o
a
d

  

7
 p

a
n

e
ls

 
2

 p
a

n
e
ls

 

5
 p

a
n

e
ls

 

1
0

 p
a

n
e

ls
 

1
0

 p
a

n
e

ls
 

3
 p

a
n

e
ls

 

S
e

v
e

n
o

a
k

s
 R

a
il
w

a
y
 S

ta
ti

o
n

 

T
u

b
s
 H

il
l 

S
it

e
 2

 L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
: 

j/
w

 A
2

2
4

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 R
o

a
d

 a
n

d
 H

it
c

h
e

n
 

H
a

tc
h

 L
a

n
e

 

P
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

 G
u

a
rd

 R
a

il
in

g
 

R
e

m
o

v
e

 -
 -
--

--
--

 
R

e
m

o
v
e

 a
ft

e
r 

c
y
c

le
 s

to
ra

g
e

 r
e

lo
c

a
te

d
 -

 -
--

--
--

 

R
e

ta
in

 -
 -
--

--
--

 

 

3
 p

a
n

e
ls

 

6
 p

a
n

e
ls

 

6
 p

a
n

e
ls

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 69



 

 
  

Site 3 Location: 

Site 3 is located at the junction with the A225 Dartford Road and the B2019 Seal 
Hollow Road.  

  
  Types of Guard Railing: 

 
Standard See through Decorative Post and Rail 

  Yes  

 
 

Conclusions / Recommendations 
 
The pedestrian guard railing is located at a complex junction and links two zebra 
crossings, one located at the junction with A225 Dartford Road and the other 
approximately 15metres away on the B2019 Seal Hollow Road.  
 
The guard railings guide pedestrians from the A225 Dartford Road footway away 
from the northern and southern exit and entry points of Seal Hollow Road to a safe 
point at the zebra crossing on Seal Hollow Road and visa versa.  
The site has a high volume of vehicular traffic and a moderate volume of pedestrian 
movement.  
 

 
• It is recommended to retain the pedestrian guard railing at site 3. 

 
 

Illustrated Diagram of site 3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

        10 

Agenda Item 6

Page 70



  
 

 

P
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

 G
u

a
rd

 R
a

il
in

g
 

R
e

ta
in

 -
 -
--

--
--

--
 

S
it

e
 3

 L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
: 

 j/
w

 A
2

2
5

 D
a

rt
fo

rd
 R

o
a

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 B

2
0

1
9

 
S

e
a

l 
H

o
ll

o
w

 R
o

a
d

  
 

A
2

2
5
 D

a
rt

fo
rd

 R
o

a
d

  

B
2
0
1
9
 S

e
a
l 

H
o

ll
o

w
 R

o
a
d

  

Agenda Item 6

Page 71



 

 
  

Site 4 Location: 

Site 4 is located at the junction with the A225 Dartford Road and Suffolk 
Way/Pembroke Road.  

  
  Types of Guard Railing: 

 
Standard See through Decorative Post and Rail 

  Yes  

 
Comments received 

 
Improvements may be made to the junction following nearby development. The 
pedestrian guard railing should be left in place until the junction is reviewed as part 
of the new development.  
 
Conclusions / Recommendations 
 
The junction is controlled by an automatic traffic light system with uncontrolled 
pedestrian crossings. 
The pedestrian guard railings at this site offer little benefit as a guide or protective 
device.   
The site has a high volume of vehicular traffic and a moderate volume of pedestrian 
movement.  
 

 
• It is recommended to remove the pedestrian guard railing at site 4. 

 
 

Illustrated Diagram of site 4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12 

Agenda Item 6

Page 72



  
 

 

S
it

e
 4

 L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
: 

 j/
w

 A
2

2
5

 D
a

rt
fo

rd
 R

o
a

d
/H

ig
h

 S
tr

e
e

t 
a

n
d

 
S

u
ff

o
lk

 W
a

y
/P

e
m

b
ro

k
e

 R
o

a
d

 

 

P
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

 G
u

a
rd

 R
a

il
in

g
  

R
e

m
o

v
a

l 
fo

ll
o

w
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

- 
--

--
--

--
--

 

 

1
 p

a
n

e
l 1
 p

a
n

e
l 

1
 p

a
n

e
l 

6
 p

a
n

e
ls

 

9
 p

a
n

e
l 

1
 p

a
n

e
l 

A
2

2
5
 D

a
rt

fo
rd

 R
o

a
d

 

S
u

ff
o

lk
 W

a
y
  

P
e
m

b
ro

k
e
 R

o
a
d

  

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

Agenda Item 6

Page 73



 

 
  

Site 5 Location: 

Site 5 is located on the A225 High Street out side the Tesco Metro.  
  
  Types of Guard Railing: 

 
Standard See through Decorative Post and Rail 

  Yes  

 
 

Conclusions / Recommendations 
 
There are only 3 pedestrian guard railing panels at this site which offer no benefit as 
a guide or protective device    
The site has a high volume of vehicular traffic and a high volume of pedestrian 
movement.  
 

 
• It is recommended to remove the pedestrian guard railing at site 5. 

 
 

Illustrated Diagram of site 5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      14 

Agenda Item 6

Page 74



  
 

 

S
u

ff
o

lk
 W

a
y
  

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

P
e
m

b
ro

k
e
 R

o
a
d

 

3
 p

a
n

e
ls

 

S
it

e
 5

 L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
: 

 H
ig

h
 S

tr
e

e
t 

- 
o

u
ts

id
e

 t
h

e
 T

e
s
c

o
 M

e
tr

o
 

P
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

 G
u

a
rd

 R
a

il
in

g
 

R
e

m
o

v
e

 -
 -
--

--
--

--
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 75



 

 
  

Site 6 Location: 

Site 6 is located on the A225 High Street outside the Tesco Metro.  
  
  Types of Guard Railing: 

 
Standard See through Decorative Post and Rail 

  Yes  

 
 

Conclusions / Recommendations 
 
There are 9 pedestrian guard railing panels located on the western side footway at 
the pelican crossing and no guard railings on the eastern side, the 9 railings offer no 
benefit as a guide or protective device, as pedestrians were observed crossing the 
road all along the High Street.     
The site has a high volume of vehicular traffic and a high volume of pedestrian 
movement.  
 

 

• It is recommended to remove the pedestrian guard railing at site 6. 
 
 

Illustrated Diagram of site 6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      16 

Agenda Item 6

Page 76



  
 

 

9
 p

a
n

e
ls

 

S
it

e
 6

 L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
: 

 H
ig

h
 S

tr
e

e
t 

- 
o

u
ts

id
e

 W
a

it
ro

s
e

 

 

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

W
a
it

ro
s
e
 

P
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

 G
u

a
rd

 R
a

il
in

g
 

R
e

m
o

v
e

 -
 -
--

--
--

--
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 77



 

 
  

Site 7 Location: 

Site 7 is located on the A224 London Road opposite the shop, Hospice of the 
Weald.  

  
  Types of Guard Railing: 

 
Standard See through Decorative Post and Rail 

Yes Yes   

 
 

Conclusions / Recommendations 
 
There are 2 pedestrian guard railing panels located on the eastern side footway at 
the zebra crossing and no guard railings on the western side. There are also 2 
panels located immediately inside the entrance to the car park which offer no benefit 
as a guide or protective device.  
The site has a high volume of vehicular traffic and a high volume of pedestrian 
movement.  
 

 
• It is recommended to remove the pedestrian guard railing at site 7. 

 
 

Illustrated Diagram of site 7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      18 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 78



  
 

 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 R
o

a
d

  

2
 p

a
n

e
ls

 

2
 p

a
n

e
ls

 

S
it

e
 7

 L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
: 

 A
2

2
4

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 R
o

a
d

 

 

P
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

 G
u

a
rd

 R
a

il
in

g
 

R
e

m
o

v
e

 -
 -
--

--
--

--
 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 79



 

 
  

Site 8 Location: 

Site 8 is located at the junction with A224 London Road and Pembroke Road/Argyle 
Road.  

  
  Types of Guard Railing: 

 
Standard See through Decorative Post and Rail 

  Yes  

 
 

Conclusions / Recommendations 
 
The site is located at a large busy crossroad junction with moderate pedestrian 
movements.  The junction has three refuge island crossing points of which two are 
controlled, with the centre island guard railings and the footway railings offering little 
benefit as a guide or protective device.  
The site has a high volume of vehicular traffic and a moderate volume of pedestrian 
movement.  
 

 
• It is recommended to remove the pedestrian guard railing at site 8. 

 
 

Illustrated Diagram of site 8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
       
 
      20 

Agenda Item 6

Page 80



  
 

 

 

S
it

e
 8

 L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
: 

 j/
w

 A
2

2
4

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 R
o

a
d

 a
n

d
 

P
e

m
b

ro
k

e
 R

o
a

d
/A

rg
y
le

 R
o

a
d

  

P
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

 G
u

a
rd

 R
a

il
in

g
  

R
e

m
o

v
e

 -
 -
--

--
--

--
 

R
e

ta
in

 -
 -
--

--
--

--
 

 

P
e
m

b
ro

k
e
 R

o
a
d

  

L
o

n
d

o
n

 R
o

a
d

  

A
rg

y
le

 R
o

a
d

  

3
 p

a
n

e
ls

 

2
 p

a
n

e
ls

 

3
 p

a
n

e
ls

 

1
 p

a
n

e
l 

1
 p

a
n

e
l 

2
 p

a
n

e
ls

 

E
a
rd

le
y
 R

o
a
d

  

L
o

n
d

o
n

 R
o

a
d

  

Agenda Item 6

Page 81



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



 

SEVENOAKS JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD – 14 DECEMBER 2011 

HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENT SCHEME PROGRESS REPORT 

Report of the: Director of Kent Highway Services 

Status: For Information 

Executive Summary: This report describes the progress to date and anticipated 
progress over the next three months of all programmed highway improvements and 
those schemes that are expected to be included in Kent County Council’s 2011-12 
Capital Programme. 

This report supports the Key Aim of Reducing speed, encouraging safer driving 
and tackling known speeding crash hotspots. Also improving pedestrian safety, 
including measures to improve access for people with disabilities as indicated in the 
Sevenoaks Community Plan.  

Chairman Cllr James London 

Head of Service Kent County Council Highways and Transportation – Head of 
Transportation – Tim Read 

Recommendations:  That Members NOTE the progress of programmed highway 
improvements. 

 

Background and Discussion 

1. This report gives details of the specific schemes which will be progressed in 
Sevenoaks including the schemes carried over from the 2010/11 financial 
year, as well as new schemes identified as crash remedial schemes. 

2. Appendix A summarises the schemes and gives an overview of the progress 
to date and anticipated progress prior to the next meeting of this Board. 

3. Appendix B summarises the committed Member Highway Funds for each 
County Member as well as details of applications which are currently being 
progressed. 

4. Polhill Crash remedial Measures – Proposal recommends 50mph speed 
limit on Polhill and London Road but this subject to Police approval.  If 
approval is not forthcoming then the remainder of the scheme will be 
implemented as planned in February.  A report considering the speed limit 
would then be made to the next meeting of this Board. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 83



 
Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011 

 

5 B2026 Hartfield Road junction with Station Road and Butterwell Hill 
"Cowden Cross" 
In 2005, Kent County Council's annual monitoring of road traffic accidents 
highlighted a worsening in the number and severity of crashes at Cowden 
Cross, (the junction of B2026 Hartfield Road junction with Station Road and 
Butterwell Hill).  To remedy this, a series of highway improvements were 
added to the 2006/07 crash remedial programme.  These measures, and the 
actions taken are summarised as follows: 

 
a)  improve traffic signs and road markings: - 2x "Crossroads" warning signs 
on yellow backing and corresponding "slow" road marking laid April 2007. 
 
b) improve road surface: - high friction surfacing laid on both B2026 
approaches April 2007. 
 
c)  improve visibility to the south of Station Road: - agreement was reached in 
October 2007 with the land owner to remove hedge and this work was carried 
out that winter. 
 
d)  improve visibility to the north of Station Road: - for over four years, KCC 
have sought an agreement with the owner of this private land to remove the 
existing hedge and to plant a replacement further away from Hartfield Road.  
Although these negotiations have become frustrated, KCC continue to monitor 
the degree to which the existing hedge interferes with drivers' visibility.  Any 
interference is dealt with in the normal course of the Highway Inspector's and 
Highway Steward's duties. 

 
e)  Move telephone pole north of Station Road out of visibility splay: - no 
action.  This can only be carried out once the hedge in (d) above has been 
removed 

 
6 The success of any crash remedial measure in assessed in terms of the 

number and severity of crashes that have caused injury since the works were 
completed.  Police records show that no crashes resulting in personal injury 
have occurred at this junction since the first of the above improvements was 
carried out.  Accordingly, there is no justification for continuing to incur 
professional costs in pursuing items (d) and (e) above.  The solicitors and 
valuers acting for KCC on this acquisition have therefore been instructed to 
terminate their negotiations and close their files. 

 

Key Implications 

Financial;  Resource (non-financial); Legal etc.; Value For Money 

7. None for Sevenoaks District Council or Kent County Council as a result of this 
report. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 84



 
Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011 

 

 

Risk Assessment Statement  

8 None. 

Appendices 

A Highway Improvement Schemes. 

B Member Highway Fund Schemes. 

 

Sources of Information: None 

Contact Officer: Laura Squires, Kent County Council      
Steven Noad, Kent County Council 
08458 247 800 

Director: John Burr – Kent County Council               
08458 247 800 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 85



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011 

Item No. 7 – Appendix A   

Highway Improvement Programme: Sevenoaks District 2011-12 

KHS 

Ref 

 

Location Description of Works Current Progress 

Anticipated Actions for next 
3 months 

(Prior to next JTB) 

O
ri

g
in

a
l 
A

ll
o

c
a
ti

o
n

 

2
0
1
1
-1

2
 

F
o

re
c
a
s
t 

O
u

t-
tu

rn
 

2
0
1
1
-1

2
 

Kent 
Highway 
Services 

Contact 

08458 
247800 

 London Road 
Swanley 

Junction Improvements at 
Birchwood Road. 

Passed to Jacobs to 
complete detailed design. 

Detailed design to be 
completed. 

£40K 

 

tba Laura 
Squires 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A25 Brasted 
Road/Beggars 
Lane, 
Westerham 

 

 

 

Re-align junction radius to 
prevent the simultaneous 
exit of right turn and left 
turn vehicles from 
Beggars Lane. 

Passed to Jacobs to 
complete detailed design. 

Programmed for construction 
on the 20th February. 

£20K £20K Laura 
Squires 

A
genda Item

 7

P
age 86



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011 

Item No. 7 – Appendix A 

 

 A224 Polhill  Reduce speed limit to 
50mph, new traffic island, 
improve existing 
advanced signing, refresh 
existing carriageway 
markings & cut back 
vegetation at Pilgrims 
Way Link Bridge. 

Detailed design work has 
commenced. 

Programmed for construction 
on the 20th February. See main 
body of report. 

£25K 

 

£25K Laura 
Squires 

10-ITS-
SE-02 

 

High Street, 

Eynsford 

Facilities to help 
pedestrians cross the road 
outside the primary school 
(2010-11 scheme) 

Traffic Regulation Order 
was made on 16 October 
2011. Works being 
programmed. 

Works to be  completed.  This 
scheme will no longer be 
reported to this board. 

£0k 

 

£3k Laura 
Squires 

 Toys Hill Improved traffic signs. Detailed design complete 
and works programmed 
for 21 November 2011. 

Works to be completed. TBA TBA Laura 
Squires 

 

 

A
genda Item

 7

P
age 87



Page 88

This page is intentionally left blank



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 14 December 2011 

Item No. 7 - Appendix B

Member Brief Description of Propsal
Amount of MHF 

Funding Committerd
Status of works

David Brazier

Valley Road, Fawkham - 

Problem with speeding vehicles 

outside school, request for 'wig-

wag' lights

£7,909 Works complete

David Brazier

Ash Road, Ash-cum-Ridley - 

contribution towards salt for 

Parish Council

£3,368 Works complete

David Brazier
Church Road, West Kingsdown - 

request for footway
£6,120 Works complete

David Brazier

Valley Road, Fawkham - To 

investigae the feasibility of 

making up the unmade lay-by

tba

Ongoing, owners 

have now provided 

outline permission

David Brazier

Hodsoll St & Gravesend Rd - To 

provide a dropped crossing to 

enable disabled users

£1,200 Ongoing 

TOTAL £18,597

John London

High Street, Sevenoaks - 

request for streetlight to be 

reinstated

£14,333 Works programmed

John London

The Vine, Sevenoaks - request 

to replace broken streetlight to fit 

in with Conservation area

£4,004 Works complete

John London
Marlborough Crescent - To 

replace a number of trees
£13,409 Ongoing

John London

Contribution to the parish council 

for the provision and 

maintenance of the village notice 

board.

£2,250 Completed

John London

Top Dartford Road/Pembroke 

Road - To provide the existing 

sigalised junction with full 

pedestrian crossing facilities

Investigations 

ongoing S106 

funding from 

Waitrose 

development

John London

Buckhurst Lane and Sevenoaks 

High Street - investigate options 

for providing disabled crossing 

facilities

tba
Investigations 

ongoing

John London

Investigation contingency fund to 

look at effects of congestion and 

air quality if the Pembroke 

Road/Dartford Road junction is 

fitted with full pedestrian facilities

£6,000 Ongoing

TOTAL £39,996

Agenda Item 7

Page 89



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 14 December 2011 

Item No. 7 - Appendix B

Nick Chard
Childsbridge Lane, Seal - 

contribution towards scheme
£30,000 Completed

Nick Chard
A25 Seal - request to lower 

speed limit
£18,500 Ongoing

Nick Chard

A six month trial reinstatement of 

the 402 service between 

Tonbridge and Sevenoaks via 

Sevenoaks Weald.

£5,000 Completed

Nick Chard

O/s St Lawrence School, Church 

Road, Stone Street. Salt bins 

requested.

£1,190 Ongoing

TOTAL £54,690

Peter Lake
Four Elms Road, Hever - 

request for bus shelter
£6,726 Works complete

Peter Lake
Penshurst Road, Chiddingstone - 

request to create parking area
£7,849 Works complete

Peter Lake
High Street, Leigh - request for 

interactive sign
£4,400 Works complete

Peter Lake
Fordcombe Road, Penshurst - 

request for interactive sign
£4,400 Works complete

Peter Lake

Station Road, Edenbridge - 

request for a pedestrian 

crossing

£23,625 Ongoing

Peter Lake

Lingfield Road, Edenbridge - 

request to extend the 30mph 

limit

£1,420
Awaiting Member 

approval

Peter Lake

Hildenborough Road, leigh - 

Request to extend the existing 

30mph limit.

£7,500
Awaiting Member 

approval

Peter Lake

Hildenborough Road, Leigh - 

road saftey improvments 

Laundry Cottages area.

see item above
Awaiting Member 

approval

Peter Lake

Cowden Village, B2026 - To 

reduce speeds through the 

village and improve signage

£5,750
Awaiting Member 

approval

Peter Lake

B2028 Marsh Green Road, 

Edenbridge - reduce the speed 

limit in this area to 50mph

£4,700
Awaiting Member 

approval

Peter Lake

Fordcombe to Penshurst Village - 

Request for an illuminating 

speed reduction sign

Referred to Member 

as location 

difficulties

TOTAL £66,370

Agenda Item 7

Page 90



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 14 December 2011 

Item No. 7 - Appendix B

Richard Parry Knockholt - request for wigwags £5,208 Works complete

Richard Parry
Quebec Square, Westerham - 

request for removal of bollard
£2,310 Works complete

Richard Parry
Station Road, Halstead - request 

for interactive sign
£4,500

Awaiting Member 

approval

Richard Parry

Quebec Square, Westerham - 

request to make the junction 

safer, one option would be to 

realign the junction.

£25,000
Awaiting Member 

approval

Richard Parry

Shopping Parade, Dunton Green 

- Request for resurfacing in the 

of the shopping parade and 

marking of a parking bay.

£7,213
Awaiting Member 

approval

Richard Parry

Cold Arbor Road - Various 

options have been discussed 

regarding safety concerns in the 

30mph limit.

£9,000
Awaiting Member 

approval

Richard Parry

Hosey Common Road/Mapleton 

Road - A proposal for hard 

standing to improve the pair of 

bus stops nearest to Chartwell 

House.

Results of safety 

audit awaited

Richard Parry
Improved road signage and lines 

at Ide Hill school
£2,500

Awaiting Member 

approval

Richard Parry
Provide a new interactive speed 

sign for Crockham Hill
£5,400

Awaiting Member 

approval

Richard Parry

Additional edge of carrigeway 

markings to the west of 

Westerham village centre

£750
Awaiting Member 

approval

Richard Parry

Upgrade to Crockham Hill's 

school amber flashing Wig-Wag 

signals

tba
Awaiting Member 

approval

TOTAL £61,881

Robert 

Brookbank

Emerson Avenue and Victoria 

Hill Road, Hextable - request for 

measures to improve visiability

£3,068 Approved/ongoing

Robert 

Brookbank

Main Road, Swanley - request to 

look at signage for Hextable
£10,735 Ongoing

Robert 

Brookbank

Sycamore Drive, Swanley  - 

request for parking restrictions
£2,544 Approved/ongoing

Robert 

Brookbank

Various Roads, Swanley - 

request for salt bins
£1,787 Works complete

Robert 

Brookbank

Russett Way, Swanley - request 

for unsuitable for HGV signs
£1,418 Approved/ongoing

Robert 

Brookbank

Archer Way, Swanley - request 

for salt bin
£596 Works complete

Agenda Item 7

Page 91



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board - 14 December 2011 

Item No. 7 - Appendix B

Robert 

Brookbank

A contribution of £5000 from the 

MHF to promote and implement 

a district wide (Sevenoaks) TRO 

to make School Keep Clear 

markings enforceable.

£5,000 Ongoing with SDC

Robert 

Brookbank

To investigae available options 

to improve the bus stop in High 

Street, Swanly to imporve 

capacity and assist with 

redestrian flows.

£20,500
Awaiting Member 

approval

Robert 

Brookbank

To improve 54 bus stops and will 

provide new posts, flags and 

timetable cases.

£4,000 Approved/ongoing

Robert 

Brookbank

New ornamental pedestrian 

railings at Lower Road/Top 

Dartford Road, Hextable

£13,700
Awaiting Member 

approval

Robert 

Brookbank

The purchase of one snow 

blower from Hextable Parish 

Council.

£1,100
Awaiting Member 

approval

Robert 

Brookbank

The purchase of one snow 

blower from Swanley Town 

Council.

£1,100
Awaiting Member 

approval

TOTAL £65,547

Roger Gough
Cray Road, Crockenhill - request 

for change of priority for junction
£19,773

Awaiting Member 

approval

Roger Gough

Riverside, Eynsford - request to 

look at edge protection between 

the road and the river

£28,500 Works complete

Roger Gough
Manse Way, Swanley - request 

for surfacing
£13,735 Works complete

Roger Gough
Charnock, Swanley - request for 

saltbin
£596 Works complete

Roger Gough

To improve 54 bus stops and will 

provide new posts, flags and 

timetable cases.

£3,000 Approved/ongoing

Roger Gough

The purchase of one snow 

blower from Swanley Town 

Council.

£1,100
Awaiting Member 

approval

Roger Gough

Place speed limit roundels on 

road at numberious location in 

Horton Kirby & South Darenth

£3,600
Awaiting Member 

approval

Roger Gough
New salt bins at Hotham Close & 

Canada Farm Road
£1,190

Awaiting Member 

approval

Roger Gough

Provide a new interactive speed 

sign for Horton Kirby in the 

school area

£5,400
Awaiting Member 

approval

TOTAL £76,894

Agenda Item 7

Page 92



  

    

SEVENOAKS JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD – 14 DECEMBER 2011 

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL HIGHWAYS & TRANSPORTATION RESTRUCTURE 

Report of the: Director of Kent Highway Services 

Status: For Consideration 

Executive Summary:  This report sets out recent changes following a restructure of 
the department and highlights how Kent Highways and Transportation (KH&T) will 
continue to focus on working with communities and ensure proper engagement with 
Members, Councillors, Parishes and local people. 

This report supports the Key Aim of.  

Chairman Cllr James London 

Head of Service Director of Kent Highways & Transportation 

Recommendations:  The Board is asked to note the report. 

 

NEW STAFFING ARRANGEMENTS IN KENT HIGHWAYS AND 

TRANSPORTATION 

1. As a part of the County Council’s strategy, Bold Steps for Kent, and wider 

national legislation and budget reductions, there have been changes across 

Kent County Council.  This includes the work done in Kent Highway Services 

now called Kent Highways and Transportation (KH&T).  This report sets out 

recent changes following a restructure of the department and highlights how 

KH&T will continue to focus on working with communities and ensure proper 

engagement with Members, Councillors, Parishes and local people. 

Introduction 

2. As a part of the County Council’s strategy, Bold Steps for Kent, and wider 

national legislation and budget reductions, there have been changes across 

Kent County Council.  This includes the work done in Kent Highway Services 

now called Kent Highways and Transportation (KH&T).  This report sets out 

recent changes following a restructure of the department and highlights how 

KH&T will continue to focus on working with communities and ensure proper 

engagement with Members, Councillors, Parishes and local people. 

Agenda Item 8

Page 93



 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011 

 

    

3. As a part of the county council’s strategy, Bold Steps for Kent, and wider     

legislation around community engagement, the way KCC works is changing 

with an aim to improve all the services provided by the council and to enhance 

the service offered to communities in Kent.  

4. Kent Highways and Transportation (KH&T) – formerly called Kent Highway 

Services - will continue to focus on working with communities and are 

committed to proper engagement with Members, district councils, parishes 

and local people.  In order to strengthen this area, meet the budget savings 

requirements and bring about efficiencies and effectiveness, changes have 

been made to the staffing of the department.  This follows a two phased 

restructuring process.  

New structure 

5. Prior to the restructure each district had allocated contacts within the Highway 

Operations teams, namely Highway Inspectors and Community Liaison 

Officers.  From 1 July the new structure came into force and there are no 

longer community Liaison Officers.  Instead we now have Highway Stewards 

and statutory Highway Inspectors.  The Highway Stewards have been 

allocated to a specific area and they will deal with customer service enquiries, 

Member, parish and community contact.  They have been empowered to carry 

out small maintenance jobs on site to rectify minor issues such as clearing 

round a sign / clearing a gully grate.  In addition they will identify specific jobs 

that are deemed necessary for their area, which will be processed through our 

Highway Management Centre (HMC) at Aylesford.  The process of the jobs 

can be prioritised and programmed in a timely manner with the designated 

team in the HMC, allowing the public facing staff to spend more time in the 

area, dealing with service requests.  They will undertake parish visits, as 

agreed locally and will be working out in the community on a daily basis.  The 

Parishes / Members and the general public should still report defects via the 

web site or our contact centre to ensure that they are recorded and entered 

into our system to be processed.  

6. Highway Inspectors will continue to carry out statutory inspections and will 

highlight defects and ensure that these are repaired within the prescribed time 

periods.  Inspectors and stewards will be supported by an efficient HMC which 

is situated on the first floor of our Aylesford Highway Depot. 

7. A list of key staff for this district is attached at Appendix A, and a list of the full 

KCC Highways staff structure can be seen in Appendix B.  

Agenda Item 8

Page 94



 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011 

 

    

Conclusion and Recommendation 

8. KH&T is committed to providing a high quality service to the communities in 

Kent. The recent changes will ensure that, despite budget reductions and 

other challenges, KH&T will keep a focus on community engagement.  

Members of this Joint Transportation Board are asked to note this report.  

Legal Implications 

9. Not applicable. 

Financial and Value for Money Considerations 

10. Not applicable. 

Risk Assessment 

11. Not applicable. 

Contact Officer(s): Carol Valentine / Julian Cook 08458 247 800 

 

 

 

 

. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 95



 

Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011 

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 96



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011 

Item No. 8 – Appendix A 

 

  

    

 

Sevenoaks Operations Team 

 

Highway Manager for West Kent: Carol Valentine 

 

District Manager: Julian Cook 

 

Highway Engineer: Mike Payton  

 

Stewards:  Sharon Clewes 

  Andrew Walters 

  Mark Osborne 

  Allan Gibbons 

 

Steward Areas: 

 

Sharon Clewes Andrew Walters Mark Osborne Allan Gibbons 

Sevenoaks 

Riverhead 

Seal 

Sevenoaks Weald 

 

Swanley 

Crockenhill 

Shoreham 

Eynsford 

Farningham 

Horton Kirby & South Darenth 

 

Knockholt 

Halstead 

Dunton Green 

Otford 

Kemsing 

West Kingsdown 

Fawkham 

Hartley 

Ash-Cum-Ridley 

Chevening 

Sundridge 

Brasted 

Westerham 

Edenbridge 

Hever 

Cowden 

Chiddingstone 

Leigh 

Penshurst  

 

 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 97



Page 98

This page is intentionally left blank



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011 
 

Item No. 8 – Appendix B 

  1st September 2011 – v.1  1

 
 
 
 
 
 

Highways & Transportation Structure 
 

 @ September  2011  

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 99



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011 
 

Item No. 8 – Appendix B 

  1st September 2011 – v.1  2

 
John Burr 

 
Director  

Highways & 
Transportation 

 

Spencer Palmer 
 

Head Highway 
Operations 

 
 
 
 

Behdad Haratbar 
 

Head of  
Programmed Work 

 
 

Tim Read 
 

Head of Highway 
Transportation 

 
 

David Beaver 
 

Commercial 
Manager 

 
 
 
 

              
              KHS Funded 

 
         

              Contractor 
 

David Hall 
 

Future Highways 
Manager 

(Temporary Post) 
 
 
 
 
 

Vacancy 
 

Personal 

Assistant 

Paul Denman 
 

Project Officer to 

Director 

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 100



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011 
 

Item No. 8 – Appendix B 

  1st September 2011 – v.1  3

 

  

Spencer Palmer 
 

Head of Operations 
 
 

David Latham 
 

Roadworks & 
Enforcement 
Manager 

 

Andy Moreton 
 

Highway 
Inspections 
Manager 

 

Carol Valentine 
 

Highway Manager 

West 

Toby Howe 
 

Highway Manager 
East 

 

Donna Terry 
 

HMC Manager 
 
 A

genda Item
 8

P
age 101



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011 
 

Item No. 8 – Appendix B 

  1st September 2011 – v.1  4

 
 
 

Toby Howe 
Highway Manager  

(East Kent) 

Paul Valek 
 

District 
Manager 

(Thanet) 

Pauline 
Rockett 

 
District 
Manager 

(Shepway) 

Alan Blackburn 
 

District 
Manager 

(Swale) 

Chris Maw 
 

District 
Manager 

(Canterbury) 

Lisa Holder 
 

District 
Manager 
(Ashford) 

 

Steve Rivers 
 

District 
Manager 

(Dover) 

Lee Goodman  
Ops Engineer 

 

Ron Swan 
Darren 

Anderson 
Jennie 

Wickenden 
Highway 

Stewards 

Pete Shirley 
Marie Lambkin 
Tracey Miller 
Highway 

Stewards 

Kevin Abell 

Ops Engineer 
Jamie 

Cunningham 
Ops Engineer 

 

Gary Gibbs 
Aprille Hall 
Ian Young 
Highway 
Stewards 

 

Mark 
Carpenter 

Tony 
Hammock 

Becky Bailey 
Highway 

Stewards 

James Bowen 

Ops Engineer 

Sarah Ellcock 
Chris Neat 
Michelle 
Matthews 
Highway 

Stewards 

Kingsley 
Williams 

Ops Engineer 

Steph 
Wadhams 
Lee Hayles 

Paul Hubbard 
Annaliese 
Mortlock 
Highway 

Stewards 

Stephanie 
Wadhams 

Ops Engineer 
 

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 102



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011 
 

Item No. 8 – Appendix B 

  1st September 2011 – v.1  5

 

Carol Valentine 
Highway Manager  

(West Kent) 

Richard 
Emmett 

 
District 
Manager 

(Maidstone) 

Julian Cook 
 

District 
Manager 

(Sevenoaks) 

Mark Simmons 
 

District 
Manager 

(Tonbridge & 

Malling) 

Earl Bourner 
 

District 
Manager 
(Tunbridge 

Wells) 

Ian Grigor 
 

District 
Manager 

(Gravesham) 

Alan Casson 
 

District 
Manager 

(Dartford) 

Roger Beisley 

Ops Engineer 

Paul Colley 
Alan Holden 
Highway 

Steward 

Sarah Sims 
Sammi 
Cribbens 

 
Highway 
Stewards 

 

Tony Atherton 

Ops Engineer 

Craig Marsh 
Richard Dixon 
Gemma Catt 
Jeff Beeney 

 
Highway 
Stewards 

 

Vacancy 

Ops Engineer 

Allan Gibbons 
Andy Walters 
Sharon Clewes 
Mark Osborne 
Highway 
Steward 

 

Mike Payton 

Ops Engineer 

Louise Codman 
John Vigor  

Laraine Barrie 
Highway 
Stewards 

 

Jez Massey 

Ops Engineer 

Donna 
Cuthbertson 
Jon Dean 

James Pronger 
Highway 
Stewards 

 

Sue Laporte 

Ops Engineer 

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 103



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011 
 

Item No. 8 – Appendix B 

  1st September 2011 – v.1  6

David Latham 
 

Roadworks & Enforcement 

Manager 

Ian Lancefield 
 

Countywide 
Compliance 
Officer 

 

Neil Campbell 
 

Roadworks 
Team Leader 
(Canterbury, 

Ashford & 
Swale) 

 

Neil Edwards 
 

Roadworks 
Team Leader  

(Thanet, Dover 
& Shepway) 

 
 

Alison Hews 
 

Roadworks 
Team Leader  
(Gravesham, 

Dartford & 
Sevenoaks) 

 

Chris Seare 
 

Roadworks 
Team Leader  

(Maidstone, 
T/Wells & 

Ton/Malling) 

Clairemarie 
Vine 

 
Enforcement 
Team Leader 

 
 

Eric Banning 
Kevin Dash 

Sharon Allister 
Coordinators 

 
Phil Lightman 
TRO Coord 

 
Andy Herbert 
Ray Parker 
Andy Bray 
 Inspectors 

 
Linda Barden 
Ellen Gillies 

TSO’s 

Emma 
Proudfoot 
Darren 

Wadhams 
Paul Sargeant 
Coordinators 

  
Ian Biggs 

Major Projects 
Co-ordinator 

 
Andy Mackay 

Gary Hambrook 
Gary Croft 
Inspectors 

 
Yasin Ziya 

Sue Bradshaw 
TSO’s 

 

Barry Frost 
David Marshall 
Andrew Rourk 
Coordinators  

 
Richard 
Highgate 

Major Projects 
Co-ordinator 

 
Alan Coffin (T) 

Barbara 
Westmacott 

Shaun 
Smallman 
Inspectors  

 
Manjit Jagpal 
Joseph Mullen 

TSO’s  

Martin Burke 
Natalie Peach 
Coordinators  

 
Louise Dilloway 
TRO Coord 

 
Nigel Fermour 

(stand in) 
Trevor 

Southgate 
Danny Wood 
Inspectors  

 
Jill Pearson 

Stephen Street 

TSO’s 

Jamie Baker 
Carol French 

 
Enforcement 
Officers 

 
James Lee 

 
Enforcement 

Officer 

Support 

Maurice (Fred) 
Cooper 

Countywide 
Inspector 
Jonathan 
Williams 

Countywide 
Data Officer  
Elizabeth 
McAdam 
Melissa 
Ramsey 
Accounts 
Officers 

Joseph Lagrue 
Data Support 

Officer 
 

Pam Kaur 
Sue Fletcher 

(p/t) 
Sue Bickerstaff 

(p/t) 
Maria Baker 

(p/t) 
 

Vehicle 
Crossover 
Officers 

 

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 104



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011 
 

Item No. 8 – Appendix B 

  1st September 2011 – v.1  7

 
 
 

Andy Moreton 
 

Highway Inspections Manager 

2 x Vacancies 
Insurance Co-ordinators  

Sam Da Costa 
12 month Fixed Term contract x 2 

Stanley Bell 
Gerry Jordan 
Martin Peskett 

Stephen Wallington 
Anthony Wickens 
Matthew Cox 
Ralph Simpson 
John Gouge 
Darren Poxon 
Richard Kaupert 
Steve Stickles 
Ian Hayne 

Dave Barnes (T) 
Michael Power (T) 

Highway Inspectors 
 

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 105



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011 
 

Item No. 8 – Appendix B 

  1st September 2011 – v.1  8

 
 

 

Donna Terry 
 

HMC Manager 

Nicky Johnson 
Claire Chewter 

Tina Piper 
Frances Povey 

Priority Response Officers  

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 106



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011 
 

Item No. 8 – Appendix B 

  1st September 2011 – v.1  9
 

Behdad 
Haratbar 

 
Head of 

Programmed 
Work 

Sue Kinsella 
 

Street Lighting 

Manager 

Katie Lewis 
 

Drainage & 

Flood Manager

Alan Riley 
Soft 

Landscape 
Manager 

(Jacobs provide 
Management  
of the service 

only) 
 

Tony Ambrose 
 

Structures 
Manager 

 

Mary Gillett 
 

Resurfacing 
Manager 

 

Contractor 

John Farmer 
 

Major Capital 
Projects 

Manager 

Sue Westwood 
 

ITS Manager 

Rachel Best  
 

Asset Manager 
 

(Capital 
Funded) 

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 107



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011 
 

Item No. 8 – Appendix B 

  1st September 2011 – v.1  10 

 
 
 

Sue Kinsella 
 

Street Lighting Manager  
 

Stephen Holmwood 
Daniel Pritchett 
Penny Roper 
Jim Scott 
Luigi Scott 

Alptekin Tanriverdi 
Engineers 

 

John Larkins 
Luke Mockeridge 

Tim Smith 
Lydia Norris 
Sonja Synek 

Technical Support Officers 
 

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 108



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011 
 

Item No. 8 – Appendix B 

  1st September 2011 – v.1  11 

 
 
 

Katie Lewis 
 

Drainage & Flood Manager 
 

Alison Lewis 
Andrew Young 
Kevin Gore 

Alastair Coleman 
Vacancy 

 

Engineers 

Emma Philpott 
Sophie Ruffer 
Jodi Harrison 

 

Technical Support Officers  

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 109



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011 
 

Item No. 8 – Appendix B 

  1st September 2011 – v.1  12 

Mary Gillett 
 

Resurfacing Manager 
Note: All Engineers and Technicians will be based at Ashford and will work on 

schemes within both disciplines in their area under each Project Manager 

Russell Boorman 
 

Team Leader & Project Manager for Resurfacing 
and Footways 

 

John Reynolds (Dartford & Gravesham) 
Wayne Latter (Ashford & Canterbury North) 
Tony Carreck (Tun Wells & Maidstone East) 

 
Engineers 

 

Simon Allsopp (T) 
Julie Emmett (T) 0.6 FTE 

 

Technicians 

Vacancy 
 

Technical Support Officer 

Neil Tree 
 

Team Leader & Project Manager for Surface 
Treatments 

 

Robert Seggie (Ton/Mall & Maidstone West) 
John Boylan (Shepway & Canterbury South) 

Wendy Boustead (Dover & Thanet) 
Michael Noonan (Sevenoaks & Swale) 

 
Engineers 

 

Tracey Scudder 
 

Technician 

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 110



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011 
 

Item No. 8 – Appendix B 

  1st September 2011 – v.1  13 

 

 

Tony Ambrose 
 

Structures Manager 
 

Vacancy 
 

Team Leader (Revenue) 
KR11 (Indicative) 

Vacancy 
 

Team Leader (Capital)/Development Control/TAA 
KR11 (Indicative) 

 

Terrie Willows 
 

TSO 

Neil Speers 
David Brenton 

 

Engineers  

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 111



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011 
 

Item No. 8 – Appendix B 

  1st September 2011 – v.1  14 

 

John Farmer 
 

Major Capital Projects Manager 
 

Jamie Watson 
Geoff Cripps 

 

Major Project Managers  

Isla Britchford 
 

Technical Support Officer 
P/T position shared between Major Projects and other 

Programmed Work teams 

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 112



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011 
 

Item No. 8 – Appendix B 

  1st September 2011 – v.1  15 

 

Sue Westwood 
 

ITS Manager 
 
 

Toby Butler 
 

Systems Engineer 
 
 

John Tyrrell 
 

Senior Traffic Systems 

Engineer 

Andrew Usher 
 

Principal Engineer 

Traffic Management 
Centre 

 
Jenny Waller 

Senior Technician 
 

Mat Watson 
Toby Donlon 
Mai Yeung 

Richard Cronin 

TMC Operators 

ITS Operations 
 

Chris Beck 
Engineer 

 
Andrew Beck 

Assistant Engineer 
 

John Murdoch 
Assistant 

Professional 
 

Ian Brooks 
Senior Technician 

Traffic Signal 
Maintenance 

 
Kim Crossman 

Principal Technician 
 

Mary Gould (0.4 fte) 
Technician 

 
John Wright 

Kevin Rackham 
Colin Stickings 
Traffic Signal 
Inspectors 

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 113



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011 
 

Item No. 8 – Appendix B 

  1st September 2011 – v.1  16  

Tim Read 
 

Head of Highway 
Transportation 

 
 
 

David Joyner 
 

Transport & Safety 
Policy Manager 

 
 

Andy Corcoran 
 

Traffic Schemes & 
MHF Manager 

 

Nasser Sarrafan 
 

Transport & 
Development 
Manager 

 

Andrew Westwood 
 

Traffic Manager 

David George 
 

Bus Rapid Transit 

Manager 

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 114



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011 
 

Item No. 8 – Appendix B 

  1st September 2011 – v.1  17  

David Joyner 
 

Transport & 
Safety 
Policy 
Manager 

 

Stephen 
Gasche 

Tom Pierpoint 
 

Public 
Transport 

Team Leaders 

Lorna Day 
 

Parking & 
Enforcement 

Manager 

Graham 
Tanner 

 
Sustainable 
Transport 

Team Leader 
 

Simon Allum 
 

Mobility & 
Safety Team 
Leader 

 
 

Anne-Marie 
Penny 

 
Safety 
Camera 

Partnership 
Project 
Manager 

Steve Horton 
 

Road Safety 

Team Leader 

Liz Miller 
Liz 

Wedgewood 
Daniel 

Washington 
(reports to 
Stephen 
Gashe) 

Laura Berry 
Annette 
Angeletta 

 
Transport 
Planners 

Anna 
Michalska-

Dober 
 

Transport 
Planner 
(Cycling) 

 

Katherine 
Barrett 

 
Safety 
Camera 

Partnership 
Communicat
ions Co-
ordinator 

 

Carol Collen 
Vicky 

Watkins 
Sheila Spiers 

 
Road Safety 
Officers 

 
Tom Moreton 

 
Driver Safety 
Training 
Officer 

 

Jean Molloy (p/t)
Jacqui Elliott 

(p/t) 
 

Concessionary 
Travel Officer  

 
Chris Paul 

 
Support Officer 
(All reporting to 

Tom) 

Linda Bell 
Julia Slade 

 
Mobility & 
Safety 
Project 
Officers 

 

Caroline Finch 
Driver  

Diversionary 
Schemes 

Team Leader 
 

Elizabeth 
Goodrich 

Nicky Simm 
Vacancy 
4 x temps 
Support 
Officers 

 

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 115



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011 
 

Item No. 8 – Appendix B 

  1st September 2011 – v.1  18 

 

Andy Corcoran 
 

Traffic Schemes & MHF Manager 
 

Andrew Burton 
 

Safety Critical Schemes Team Leader 
 

Steve Darling (Ashford & Swale) 
Kerry Prescott (Dartford & Gravesham) 
Kelly Garrett (Canterbury & Thanet) 

Laura Squires (Sevenoaks & Tunbridge Wells) 
Ben Hilden (Maidstone & Tonbridge & Malling) 

Richard Heaps (Dover & Shepway) 
 

Gary Peak (Schemes Design) 
Dean Barkley (Schemes Design) 
Lisa Gilham (Schemes Design) 

Darren Hickman (Schemes Design) 
 

Engineers 

Jill Collins 
Miles Davies 

Technical Support Officers 

Kirstie Williams 
 

Member Highway Fund Team Leader 

Tara O’Shea (Ashford & Swale) 
Rebecca Scott–Beaulieu (Dartford & Gravesham) 

Ryan Shiel (Canterbury & Thanet) 
Steven Noad (Sevenoaks & Tunbridge Wells) 

Michael Heath (Maidstone & Tonbridge & Malling) 
Tony Jenson (Dover & Shepway) 

Christopher Cordery-Moore (MHF Design) 
Helen Cobby (MHF Design) 

Andy Padgham (MHF Design) 
Engineers 

 
Amanda Martin 
MHF Officer 

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 116



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011 
 

Item No. 8 – Appendix B 

  1st September 2011 – v.1  19 

Nasser Sarrafan 
 

Transport & Development 
Manager 

 

Darren Patey 
 

Highway Definition 
Team Leader 

 

Jamie Hare 
 

Development  
Agreements 
 Manager 

Bob White 
 

Development 
Planning Manager 

 

Glenn Holliday 
Senior Agreements 

Engineer 
 

Neil Clarke 
Brian Claydon 
Robert Colley 
Joanne Davies 
Michele Ellis 
Dean Heynes 
Ashley Ralph 
David Miles 
Paul Norman 

Timothy Roberts 
Geoff Dance 

Agreements Engineers 

 

Sally Benge 
Peter Rosevear 
Vicki Hubert 

Chad Nwanoskie 
Ruth Goudie 
Paul Lulham 

James Hammond 
Strategic Transport 

Planners 
 

Matthew Hogben 
Louise Rowlands 

Alun Millard 
James Wright 
Peter Slaughter 
Richard Smith 
Martin Rayner 
Margaret Parker 

Development Planners 
 

Paul Bishop 
Frances Povey 

 
Technical Support Officers 

 

Timothy Bassett 
Aaron Divall 

Sara Stevens (0.7 fte) 
Valerie Wickenden 
Linzi Wise (0.4 fte) 

Donna Rixson 
Highway Definition 

Officers 
 

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 117



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011 
 

Item No. 8 – Appendix B 

  1st September 2011 – v.1  20  

David Beaver 
 

Commercial Manager 

David Thomas 
 

Business Performance Manager 
 

David Aspinall 
 

Contracts Manager 

Pavinder Jutte 
 

Contract Compliance Officer 
 

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 118



Sevenoaks Joint Transportation Board – 14 December 2011 
 

Item No. 8 – Appendix B 

  1st September 2011 – v.1  21 

 

David Thomas 
 

Business Performance 

Manager 

Kay Groves 
 

Business Improvement 
Team Leader 

(Secondment) 

Julie Ward 
 

Business Performance 

Team Leader 

Paul Denman 
 

Project Officer to the 

Director 

Simon Maloney 
 

Business Improvement 

Officer 

Sam Stevens (0.6) 
Cherelle Crocker 

Iain Norman 
Julia Fitzpatrick 

Margaret Blackwell (0.6) 
April Draper (App) 

Sophie Pridmore (starts 
12th Sep) 

Business Performance 
Officers  
Vacancy 

PA to KHS Director 

Suzanne Frame 
Kimberley Bishop 

 
Recharge Officers 

(Reclaiming money for 
damage to KHS assets) 

 

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 119



P
age 120

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting of the Board held on 14 September 2011
	4 Proposed parking restrictions in Chevening and Riverhead.
	Item 04 - Parking Restrictions Chevening and Riverhead Appendix A -page 1
	Item 04 - Parking Restrictions Chevening and Riverhead Appendix A -page 2
	Item 04 - Parking Restrictions Chevening and Riverhead Appendix B
	Item 04 - Parking Restrictions Chevening and Riverhead Appendix C
	Item 04 - Parking Restrictions Chevening and Riverhead Appendix D

	5 Petition - Valley Road, Fawkham.
	Item 05 - Appendix A Copy of Fawkham School petition no signatories
	Item 05 - Appendix B Letter from the Police, Valley Rd, Fawkham, Nov 2011

	6 Sevenoaks Pedestrian Guardrailing Assessment.
	Item 06 - Sevenoaks PRA Consultation Appendix

	7 Highway Improvement Scheme Progress Report.
	Item 07 - Highway Schemes Appendix B

	8 Kent County Council Highways and Transportation Restructure.
	Item 08 - KCC Restructure Report Appendix B


